
 

 

CABINET MEMBER FOR SAFE AND ATTRACTIVE NEIGHBOURHOODS 
 
Venue: Town Hall, Moorgate 

Street, Rotherham.  S60  
2TH 

Date: Monday, 8th December, 2014 

  Time: 10.00 a.m. 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

 
1. To determine if the following matters are to be considered under the categories 

suggested, in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended 
March 2006).  

  

 
2. To determine any item which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 

considered later in the agenda as a matter of urgency.  
  

 
3. Apologies for absence  
  

 
4. Local Plan - Annual Monitoring Report 2014 (Pages 1 - 62) 
  

 
5. Exclusion of the Press and Public  

 
The following item is likely to be considered in the absence of the press and 
public as being exempt under Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the 
Local Government Act 1972 (Information relating to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person, including the local authority) 

 
6. Council Housing - Damp-proofing works (Pages 63 - 65) 
  

 
7. District Heating - upgrading of pipework and installation of new radiators 

(Pages 66 - 84) 
  

 
8. Date and time of next meeting - Monday 12 January 2015 at 10.00 a.m.  
  

 

 



ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

 
 

 
 
5. Summary 
The Council is required to produce a publicly available Annual Monitoring Report for 
the Local Plan. Submission to Government is no longer required but the draft 2014 
Annual Monitoring Report is now ready for general publication.  
 
 
6. Recommendations 
 
 1. That Cabinet Member approves the publication of the 2014 Annual 

Monitoring Report.  
 
 
 

1.  Meeting:  Cabinet Member and Advisers for Safe and 
Attractive Neighbourhoods 

2.  Date:  Monday 8 December 2014 

3.  Title:  Annual Monitoring Report 2014 

4.  Programme Area:  Environment and Development Services  

Page 1 Agenda Item 4



7. Proposals and Details 
 
The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the Council to prepare an 
Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) to be published by the end of each December. This 
is intended to cover progress in achieving the programme published in the Local 
Development Scheme together with the monitoring of performance in implementing 
the policies supporting Rotherham's strategy for spatial development as well as the 
findings of Sustainability Appraisal monitoring. 
 
Annual Monitoring Reports are required to cover the financial year preceding 
December publication - this tenth AMR covers the period 1st April 2013 to 31st 
March 2014. It sets out a monitoring framework which is evolving incrementally as 
the first round of planning documents and policies are prepared and additional ones 
are brought forward in the future. Accordingly, this tenth AMR builds on some of the 
initial broad principles to guide the monitoring of the developing Local Plan as well as 
a selection of performance indicators based on data that is most readily available.  
 
There have been some significant changes from earlier years AMRs as the 
requirement of reporting on regional and national indicators have been changed or 
scrapped completely (although a few core indicators do remain). The indicators are 
now aligned with local priorities and the core policies of the Core Strategy under the 
seven broad themes of ‘Delivering Development in Sustainable Locations’, ‘Creating 
Mixed and Attractive Places to Live’, ‘Supporting a Dynamic Economy’, 'Movement 
and Accessibility', 'Managing the Natural and Historic Environment', 'Creating Safe 
and Sustainable Communities' and ‘Infrastructure’. The indicators reflect the 17 broad 
objectives and the 34 core policies within the Core Strategy that underpin these aims. 
This selection of indicators will continue to be supplemented as the Local Plan 
monitoring framework evolves.  
 
For all the indicators measuring the strategic themes and policies contained in the 
Core Strategy the performance over the year showed:  
 

• 22 indicators have improved 

• 19 indicators have shown no significant change from the baseline or updated 
data is unavailable 

• 13 indicators have declined or are not on target 
 
A breakdown of performance by the six broad themes and headings (excluding 
infrastructure for which monitoring indicators will be determined as part of the 
infrastructure delivery plan) is shown within the report. 
 
Good performance / improvements have been seen in:  
 

• A third of completed new builds were on previously developed land. 

• Increase in the number of affordable housing units (191 homes). 

• Vacancy rates on industrial and commercial property located on the main 
industrial parks of Rotherham have decreased for the third consecutive year. 

• New business registration rate increases for the second consecutive year. 

• Public transport usage increase on previous year. 

• Condition of Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI's) improving. 

Page 2



• Number / capacity of renewable energy generation schemes granted approval 
increased again. 

 
Poor performance / decline in:  
 

• Slight increase on 2012/13 but number of dwellings built continues to be below 
target despite a continuing high level of permissions. 

• Percentage built within the Rotherham Urban area below Core Strategy target. 

• Vacancy rate on the primary shopping streets in Rotherham town centre has 
increased (by 3 'units' to 15.5%). 

• One additional listed building now 'at risk' according to English Heritage. 

• Household waste recycling rates have fallen for the second consecutive year.  
 

 
There are a number of key projects which, due to their large scale and potential 
impact, are mentioned in more detail within the report. 
 
Waverley  
 
Planning permission has been granted for a sustainable mixed use community with 
significant housing provision at the former open-cast mining site at Waverley (a major 
previously developed site), and development has begun on phase 1 of the scheme. 
The planning permission includes 3,890 new dwellings, of which it is estimated that 
2,500 will be delivered in the Plan period to 2028. To date around 200 new dwellings 
have been completed on site.  
 
Rotherham Town Centre  
 
The vacant sites resulting from the relocation of Council offices will present future 
redevelopment opportunities. Construction is complete of a new Tesco store which 
has seen the operator relocate from their previous site at Forge Island to the 
Council's former civic area at Walker Place. The new store began trading in 
November 2014. Phase 1 of the Rotherham Renaissance Flood Alleviation Scheme 
has been completed, including a new wetland area at Centenary Riverside in 
Templeborough, with Phase 2 expected to be delivered incrementally as 
development comes forward and funding from other sources becomes available.  
 
Bassingthorpe Farm  
 
The Bassingthorpe Farm urban extension was identified as a broad location for 
growth in the submission Core Strategy. At the Examination of the Core Strategy the 
Inspector was satisfied that the detailed evidence supporting the future development 
of Bassingthorpe Farm was sufficient that the site could be formalised as a strategic 
allocation. This is what he subsequently recommended in his final report. 
 
Following the Inspector’s decision, Bassingthorpe Farm can come forward before 
other sites in the Sites & Policies document, providing a sustainable urban extension 
for the wider Rotherham Urban Area. In total, the development will provide around 
2,400 new homes with 1,700 homes being delivered in this Plan period (up to 2028). 
The development will also provide around 11 hectares of land for employment 
together with associated infrastructure requirements. 

Page 3



 
The draft 2014 Annual Monitoring Report will be made available electronically 
prior to the meeting.  
 
8. Finance 
There are no direct implications arising from this report. The AMR is published 
electronically with hard copies provided at reasonable cost if requested.  
 
9. Risks and Uncertainties 
There are no direct implications arising from this report.  
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
There are no direct implications arising from this report.  
 
11. Background Papers and Consultation 
 
Local Plan Annual Monitoring Report (Dec 2014) 
 
Contact Names: 

Neil Rainsforth, Senior Research & Spatial Analysis Officer 
01709 823854, neil.rainsforth@rotherham.gov.uk  
 
Andy Duncan, Planning Policy Manager  
01709 823830, andy.duncan@rotherham.gov.uk  
 

Page 4



���������

�����	
��������
������
�	
	��	�����

	���	
�	��

��������	�����������

Page 5



Page 6



Foreword

Significant progress as been made on Rotherham's new Local Plan during the last year. The Core
Strategy and supporting documents were submitted to the Secretary of State on 6 June 2013 for
independent examination. An inspector was appointed and the public examination hearing sessions
were held over a 3 week period at the end of October / beginning of November 2013, with an
additional hearing session in May 2014. The Inspector's final report was issued on 30 June 2014 and
found that the Core Strategy could be found sound subject to a number of Main Modifications. The
Council subsequently adopted the Core Strategy on 10 September 2014.

Following a review of the responses received to the draft Sites and Policies in 2013 a Final Draft Sites
and Policies DPD October 2014 and an updated Policies Map has been prepared and is currently out
for public consultation during the period 13th October 2014 to 24th November 2014. The Council
also intends to start consultation on a revised Draft Charging Schedule from 24th November 2014
to 5th January 2015 which includes revised proposed charges and updated evidence base

The new National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) continues the requirement for the Council to
prepare an Annual Monitoring Report (AMR) to be published by the end of December. This is intended
to cover progress in achieving the programme of Local Plan documents published in the Local
Development Scheme together with the monitoring of performance in implementing the policies
supporting Rotherham's strategy for spatial development as well as the findings of Sustainability
Appraisal monitoring.

Annual Monitoring Reports are required to cover the financial year preceding December publication
- this tenth AMR covers the period 1st April 2013 to 31st March 2014 and builds on some of the initial
broad principles to guide the monitoring of the developing Local Plan as well as a selection of
performance indicators based on data that is most readily available. Indicators are aligned with the
thirty-four strategic policy areas included within the adopted Core Strategy which are designed to
achieve the Plan’s objectives.

In recognising the importance of engaging interested parties in the new Local Plan process, the
Council would welcome any views you may have about the content of this tenth AMR and how it
might continue to evolve in subsequent years. Finally, if you require any further information or advice
about Rotherham's new Local Plan you can visit the website or contact the Council's Planning Policy
Team, who will be pleased to help.

I look forward to your continuing participation in preparing Rotherham's new Local Plan.

Councillor Maggie Godfrey - Cabinet Member for Safe and Attractive Neighbourhoods, Chair of
the Local Plan Steering Group

Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 7



Page 8



Content

31 Introduction

52 The Local Development Scheme

73 Developing a monitoring framework

134 Housing trajectory

165 Summary of findings

216 Tables of indicators

Appendices

421 Indicative Local Development Scheme timetable

432 Glossary

Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 9



1 Introduction

1.1 The Government's guidance about monitoring states that it "is essential to see what is happening
now, what might happen in the future and then to compare these trends against existing planning
policies and targets to determine what needs to be done". Monitoring will help the Council understand
the wider social, environmental and economic issues affecting Rotherham and how these will influence
change. Monitoring is an important part of the planning process and will be crucial to the effectiveness
of the new Local Plan.

1.2 The Local Plan will need to be continually reviewed and revised and successive annual monitoring
reports, with their evolving monitoring mechanisms, will be the main way of assessing Local Plan
performance and effects. Local Plans are required to promote sustainable development with due
regard to environmental, economic, natural resource and social matters. Development Frameworks
are also about the spatial effects of development and how this can be harnessed by the plans and
aspirations of stakeholders and communities, including those within the Community Strategy. However,
it should be recognised that it will take considerable time and resources to establish a proficient
"sustainable spatial planning" monitoring framework.

1.3 The separate requirement to undertake Sustainability Appraisal of Local Development Documents
(itself incorporating the requirements of the Strategic Environmental Assessment Directive) also
requires monitoring of the Local Plans significant environmental, social and economic effects. For
sake of efficiency and to maximise mutual benefits this monitoring should be undertaken together
with Local Plan monitoring.

1.4 This tenth Annual Monitoring Report covers the 2013/14 financial year and represents the next
step in development of a Local Plan monitoring framework and the annual process of:

Reviewing progress in preparing Local Plan documents against their timetables published in the
Local Development Scheme

Assessing the extent to which Local Plan policies are being implemented

Looking at what action needs to be taken when policies are not being implemented

Examining whether policies are having their intended effects, particularly in achieving
sustainable development
Identifying policies needing to be changed or replaced

Reporting the findings of Sustainability Appraisal Monitoring

Ensuring alignment with corporate priorities and the local Community Strategy

1.5 The Government recognises that Annual Monitoring Reports will not be able to cover all the
aspirations contained in its monitoring guidance. The abolition of the Regional Spatial Strategy lessens
the rigidity of reporting to a regional level and allows for greater scope in local target setting and the
monitoring of areas of performance more in line with local priorities and concerns. It needs to be

3Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 10



recognised that the AMR format and monitoring framework will evolve incrementally – for example
this latest AMR reflects the just adopted Core Strategy position in respect of the 34 key strategic
policy areas. There is often a lack of consistent and relevant information and currently the Council
does not have access to all the information and resources required to undertake comprehensive
monitoring.

1.6 Emphasis is therefore placed on the following practical principles to be adopted in establishing
and developing the Local Plan monitoring framework and related data management:

1.7 Short term

Draw from existing indicators and data sources where readily available and relevant to Local
Plan requirements - e.g. this may include some of the former national indicators and regional
indicators

Identify current gaps in data and how these might be rectified - e.g. locally developed indicators

Joint monitoring arrangements - continue working with other Sheffield City Region Planning
Authorities and other agencies on cross-border measures / indicators

1.8 Longer term

Devise new systems to capture appropriate data from planning application forms and decision
notices

Develop streamlined and co-ordinated internal corporate monitoring arrangements for the Local
Plan

Integrate appropriate indicators and co-ordinate monitoring arrangements with the Local
Transport Plan Secretariat, the Local Strategic Partnership and other key stakeholders.

Annual Monitoring Report 20144

1
Page 11



2 The Local Development Scheme

2.1 The Local Plan is made up of a portfolio of local development documents. These include
Development Plan Documents (DPDs) that are subject to independent examination and, when adopted,
will form Rotherham's statutory development plan. Others will be supporting Supplementary Planning
Documents together with the Local Development Scheme (the project plan and programme) and
Statement of Community Involvement (the public participation strategy) for the Local Plan process.

2.2 The first document to be prepared was the Local Development Scheme (LDS) setting out the
programme and details of the first round of Local Plan documents. It was last updated and approved
in September 2014. This confirms the programme of DPDs as follows:

Core Strategy DPD (adopted by the Council on 10th September 2014)
Sites & Policies DPD and Policies Map
Barnsley, Doncaster & Rotherham Joint Waste Core Strategy DPD (this is now complete / adopted)

2.3 Progress in the preparation of the above documents during the 2013/14 financial year covered
by this report is set out below. The latest timetable for future consultation on Local Plan documents
is available on our website at www.rotherham.gov.uk/localplan

Statement of Community Involvement

2.4 The SCI was formally adopted by the Council on 14 June 2006 and is currently under review
- a consultation on a revised SCI is currently out for public consultation, running alongside the Final
Draft Sites and Policies consultation for the period 13th October 2014 to 24th November 2014.

Core Strategy DPD

2.5 Following earlier stages of preparation and consultation the Core Strategy and supporting
documents were submitted to the Secretary of State on 6 June 2013 for independent examination.
An inspector was appointed and the public examination hearing sessions were held over a 3 week
period at the end of October / beginning of November 2013, with an additional hearing session in
May 2014. The Inspector's final report was issued on 30 June 2014 and found that the Core Strategy
could be found sound subject to a number of Main Modifications. The Council subsequently adopted
the Core Strategy on 10 September 2014.

Sites and Policies DPD and Policies Map

2.6 Potential development sites have been processed through the Sheffield/Rotherham Strategic
Housing Land Assessment and an updated Employment Land Review. This has assisted in the
refinement of the eventual spatial option for the Publication Core Strategy and in turn provided the
basis for identifying supporting site allocations. A Strategic Green Belt Review has been completed
(2012) to inform progress on the Core Strategy and the Sites and Policies DPDs.

2.7 The Sites and Policies Issues and Options consultation stage was run in parallel with consultation
on the pre-publication draft Core Strategy (4 July to 16 September 2011). Further consultation on a
draft Sites and Policies DPD, which included consultation within individual settlements to pinpoint
specific site allocations, was carried out between 20th May and 29th July 2013. The document also

5Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 12

http://www.rotherham.gov.uk/localplan


included draft development management policies and a first draft of a Policies Map to reflect these
policies and site allocations.

2.8 Following a review of the responses received to the draft Sites and Policies in 2013 a Final
Draft Sites and Policies DPD October 2014 and an updated Policies Map has been prepared and is
currently out for public consultation during the period 13th October 2014 to 24th November 2014.

Barnsley, Doncaster and Rotherham Joint Waste DPD

2.9 The Barnsley, Doncaster and Rotherham Joint Waste Plan (a collaboration between Barnsley,
Doncaster and Rotherham Councils) was subject to an Examination in Public in 2011. It was formally
adopted in March 2012 following approval from the secretary of state.

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

2.10 As of October 2014, the Council has undertaken consultation (05.08.13 to 07.10.13) on a
preliminary draft CIL charging schedule. This sets out the Council’s early thoughts on proposed
charging rates for new development, which vary according to development type and location, to
collect funds for the delivery of infrastructure. This schedule is based on an evidence base including
the CIL (Viability and Infrastructure) Study 2013, a Whole Plan Viability Study (2013) and an
Infrastructure Delivery Study (2012). The Council intends to start consultation on a revised Draft
Charging Schedule in November 2014 (24.11.14 to 05.01.15) which includes revised proposed charges
and updated evidence base. A draft “Regs 123 list” of infrastructure that CIL may be used to help
paid for will also be issued. Subject to submission and successful examination in Spring / Summer
2015 it is likely CIL will be adopted by early Autumn 2015.

Annual Monitoring Report 20146

2
Page 13



3 Developing a monitoring framework

3.1 Indicators and targets can often be driven by the easy availability of a wide range of information
which is not really relevant to the performance of the spatial planning policies of the Local Plan. It
is preferable to adopt an objectives - targets - indicators approach to Local Plan monitoring.

3.2 Example of the objectives-targets-indicators framework:

Output indicatorTargetLocal development framework
policy objective

% on new non-residential
development complying with

70% or more of new
non-residential development

Decrease traffic congestion by
reducing car parking provision for

local development framework
car parking standards

complies with local
development framework car
parking standards

major non-residential development
in locations with good access by non
car modes

3.3 This involves establishing clear and specific objectives to guide the selection and measurement
of meaningful indicators and targets. Once objectives have been identified and related policies
developed, it is possible to select relevant output indicators and set appropriate targets against which
movement towards or away from policy objectives can be measured over time.

3.4 It is important that targets are specific and grounded in reality and are not vague and
aspirational. Indeed, targets should be "SMART" (specific, measurable, achievable, realistic and
time-bound). The AMR needs to consider process targets (progress in achieving the LDS programme),
policy targets (thresholds for change to be achieved by policies over a specific period) and sustainability
appraisal targets (measuring the contribution of policies to sustainability).

3.5 Three types of indicator are relevant to the Local Plan

Contextual indicators – describing the broad social, environmental and economic baseline
background of Rotherham and providing a backdrop to develop spatial policies and to inform
the interpretation of output and significant effects indicators.

Output indicators – comprising core and local indicators informing spatial planning policy progress
and achievement.

Core indicators –Following abolition of the Regional Spatial Strategy the requirement for
measuring these 'Core Indicators' will cease but there remain some indicators which central
government require all authorities to monitor. Some have also been carried forward as
they are considered to remain relevant to Rotherham. One of the key core indicators relates
to housing policy and performance - a housing trajectory showing past and estimating
future performance in housing delivery is covered in the next section.

Local indicators – the choice of these depends on local circumstances and issues. For the
purposes of this tenth Annual Monitoring Report the choice of local indicators in the tables

7Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 14



has been governed by the current availability and quality of relevant data from established
sources and in aligning with the Community Strategy and Corporate Plan. Local indicators
will be developed incrementally reflecting the evolving monitoring framework as new policies
are prepared, practical experience is gained and as improved data capture and management
systems are developed.

Significant effect indicators – informing the impact of policies on sustainability. The selection of
indicators is closely linked to those having been developed for the Local Plans Sustainability
Appraisal process as set out in the Scoping Report.

3.6 To reflect the adoption of the Core Strategy which incorporates work carried out on the
development of the strategic policies designed to achieve the Plan's objectives this tenth AMR has
grouped the indicators under seven broad themes of:

Delivering development in sustainable locations

Creating mixed and attractive places to live

Supporting a dynamic economy

Movement and accessibility

Managing the natural and historic environment

Creating safe and sustainable communities

Infrastructure

Under each broad aim / heading indicators are further grouped by the particular policy area - in total
34 Core Strategy policies which support the 17 strategic objectives.

3.7 All indicators will, wherever possible, be updated on an annual basis. However, for some
indicators, in particular local indicators, it may not be cost effective or feasible to collect on a yearly
basis – e.g. repeating surveys every year. This is in-line with CLG advice which confirms that some
qualitative indicators can be gathered less frequently, although these should be balanced where
possible with indicators more readily monitored on an annual basis.

Monitoring Indicators

3.8 The Council has included within Section 6 of the Core Strategy a monitoring and implementation
section which identifies the Annual Monitoring Report as the main mechanism for assessing the Local
Plan’s performance and effect. Whilst the indicators are based around national guidance on monitoring
and include the key Local Plan Core Output Indicators as currently specified by Central Government
data requirements, other national indicators are currently in the process of being abolished and /or
greatly reduced which may also reduce the availability of national datasets (paragraph 6.04 of the
Core Strategy refers). Within the Integrated Impact Assessment prepared to accompany the Core

Annual Monitoring Report 20148

3
Page 15



Strategy section 21.3 summarises the IIA and statutory SEA monitoring recommendations specific
to the Core Strategy. In addition table 20.3 of the IIA, prepared to accompany the Sites and Policies
Final Draft September 2014, summarises the IIA and statutory SEA monitoring recommendations
specific to the Local Plan, including the Sites and Policies Document. The IIA states that “Such
monitoring may require a change in the way that planning application and / or building control data
is collected and collated in order to meet this statutory obligation. Monitoring the need to update
the Infrastructure Delivery Study (2012) and the future delivery of infrastructure is essential.”

3.9 In future years therefore, the Council will review the indicators identified in the Core Strategy
and the accompanying Local Plan Integrated Impact Assessments to:-

rationalise the indicators to ensure there is a single over-arching set of monitoring indicators
for the Local Plan;

determine the indicators that can currently be monitored; the level of detail that can be provided
and the time-frame for monitoring the indicators; and provide a clear commentary in the AMR
if required;

where possible the monitoring of the Local Plan should use established datasets;

where there is currently no information monitored or available to enable monitoring of the impact
of the policy, consideration should be given to the use of proxy information;

where the use of proxy indicators / information is not possible, the indicator should be listed in
the AMR table with clear commentary as to the reasons for monitoring not being undertaken.

3.10 It will be essential to establish procedures and protocols to ensure this monitoring process
is undertaken.

3.11 Maintaining a research and intelligence capability and managing an effective evidence base
is critical to the preparation of local development documents and testing their soundness at
independent examination. The Community Strategy was prepared in advance of the preliminary work
in preparing the Local Plan. During Local Plan preparation a new draft Community Strategy has been
developed. The integration between both documents is assisted by emphasis on the linkages between
the Community Strategy priorities and the Local Plan vision and strategic objectives set out in the
Publication Core Strategy.

3.12 The Community Strategy, new Corporate Plan and the Local Plan share certain performance
indicators wherever possible or meaningful. Some of these Local Plan indicators are likely to be
substituted by more pertinent local indicators as policies in the Sites and Policies DPD and subsequent
supporting DPDs are finalised.

3.13 We will continue to use evidence from the plans, strategies and initiatives of other stakeholders
(e.g. the Rotherham Community Strategy, Local Transport Plan) and internal corporate sources (e.g.
RMBC Corporate Plan, Housing Strategy, Housing Market Assessment, Economic Plan, Cultural
Strategy).

9Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 16



3.14 We have also completed or collaborated on the following technical studies to underpin the
Local Plan:

Rotherham Urban Potential Study, RMBC, 2004

Rotherham Borough Retail and Leisure Study, White Young Green, 2004

South Yorkshire Settlement Study, Jacobs Babtie, 2005

Sustainability Appraisal General Scoping Report, ARUP, 2005

Transform South Yorkshire 2nd Prospectus, TSY, 2005

Rotherham Strategic Development Framework, RMBC and Yorkshire Forward, 2005

Green Spaces Audit, Scott Wilson, 2005

Joint Sheffield/Rotherham Economy Report, CURS, 2007

Employment land Review, RMBC, 2007

Strategic Housing Market Assessment, Fordham consultants, 2007

Rotherham Local Wildlife Site System Part 1: Framework for Rotherham (2007, updated 2010
and 2014)

Rotherham Local Wildlife Site System Part 2: Site Selection Guidelines for Rotherham (2007,
updated 2010)

Serviced Accommodation Needs to 2012, MPA, 2007

Affordable Housing Viability Study, UWE at Bristol, 2007

Rotherham Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (Level 1), Jacobs, 2008

Rotherham Town Centre Residential Strategy, Knight Frank, 2008

Joint Rotherham and Sheffield Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment - Rotherham
results, RMBC, 2009

Sustainability Appraisal of the Core Strategy Revised Options, WSP, 2009

Spatial Options Report, Jacobs, 2009

Rotherham Landscape Character Assessment and Landscape Capacity Study, 2010

Rotherham Town Centre Retail and Leisure Study, Colliers CRE & The Retail Group, 2010

Annual Monitoring Report 201410

3
Page 17



Greenspace Strategy, RMBC, 2010

Employment Land Review Update, RMBC, 2010

Strategic Housing Market Assessment, Fordham consultants, 2010

Local Economic Assessment, RMBC, 2010

Regionally Important Geological Sites selection and boundary update, RMBC, 2010

South Yorkshire Green Infrastructure Strategy, 2011

South Yorkshire Residential Design Guide, 2011

Rotherham Retail and Leisure Study, Colliers International, 2011

Sustainability Appraisal General Scoping Report, Jacobs, 2011

Integrated Impact Assessment of the Draft Core Strategy, Jacobs, 2011

Rotherham Town Centre Flood Risk Toolkit (including a Level 2 Strategic Flood Risk Assessment
for the town centre), Jacobs, 2011

Rotherham Low Carbon and Renewable Energy Study, Wardell Armstrong, 2011

Infrastructure Delivery Study, Roger Tym & Partners, 2012

Update of the Joint Rotherham and Sheffield Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment -
Rotherham results, 2012

Affordable Housing Viability Study, Professor Stephen Walker, 2012

Rotherham Local Brownfield Strategy: Market Assessments, GVA, 2011

Rotherham Strategic Green Belt Review, RMBC, 2012

Archaeology Scoping Study of Site Allocations, Wessex Archaeology, 2012

Integrated Impact Assessment Addendum 1: IIA of Proposed Changes, Jacobs, 2012

Integrated Impact Assessment of the Submission Core Strategy, Jacobs, 2013

Whole Plan Viability Assessment, Peter Brett Associates, 2013

Forecasts of Population and Households for the Sheffield City Region, Sheffield CC and others,
2013

11Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 18



Transport Impact Assessment, MVA, 2013

Bassingthorpe Farm Concept Framework, Signet Planning, RMBC and ATLAS, 2013

CIL Viability Study, Peter Brett Associates, 2013

Draft Joint Doncaster and Rotherham Local Aggregate Assessment, DMBC and RMBC, 2013

Integrated Impact Assessment General Scoping Report (post consultation update), Jacobs, 2013

Archaeology Scoping Study of Additional Potential Site Allocations, Wessex Archaeology, 2014

Rotherham Local Wildlife Site System: Part 1 & 2 Framework for Rotherham: 2014 update,
RMBC, 2014

Rotherham Detailed Green Belt Review, RMBC, 2014

Heritage Impact Assessment, RMBC, 2014

Landscape Capacity Assessment, RMBC, 2014

Flood Risk Sequential Test Background Paper, RMBC 2014

Integrated Impact Assessment of the Sites & Policies DPD, Jacobs, 2014

Annual Monitoring Report 201412

3
Page 19



4 Housing trajectory

4.1 One of the key Local Plan core output indicators that the Council is required to monitor relates
to housing delivery. Paragraph 47 of the NPPF requires local development frameworks to include
information on housing policy and performance, particularly in terms of net additional dwellings.
Housing trajectories support the Plan Monitor and Manage approach to housing delivery by showing
past and estimated future performance. The housing trajectory considers past rates of housing
completions and conversions and projected to the end of the framework period.

4.2 Included here and with the trajectory are tables showing past performance (since 2008) and
the distribution of the housing requirement through the plan period. The first 5 years requirement
includes a 20% increase, brought forward form later in the plan period. This is applied due to consistent
historic under-performance against targets, as required by Paragraph 47 of the NPPF.

Totals2012/132011/122010/112009/102008/09Backlog Against Local
Target 2008 - 2013

4,250850850850850850Local Target

2,629511688485339606Net Additions

1,621339162365511244Difference

Requirement Including Backlog

1,621Backlog Against Local Target 2008/09 to 2012/13

12,750Core Strategy Requirement 2013/14 to 2027/28

14,371Total Requirement

Distribution of Local Target and Backlog Throughout the Plan

5,7475 Year Requirement + Backlog + 20%

1,150Annual Requirement in first 5 years

8,624Requirement Final 10 years

862Annual Requirement in final 10 years

4.3 The Housing Trajectory shows:

1. Past dwelling completions for 2013/14;

2. Projected completion rates until the end of the Local Plan period, based on contributions of the
various components of housing supply that will make up the total allocation. This includes existing

13Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 20



allocated sites, existing commitments as well the assumption that future allocations in the
emerging Local Plan will be managed to meet future requirements;

3. The annual requirement adjusted to take account of front loading of plus 20% for the first five
years and

4. the average annual target at any given year, taking into account previous completion rates
(known or assumed, as appropriate). This figure is calculated by taking the total number of
dwellings in the remaining requirement, divided by the number of years remaining.

4.4 The trajectory reflects analysis of the various components that will make up future housing
supply and the delivery timescales, using evidence provided by the Joint Sheffield / Rotherham
Strategic Housing Land Availability Assessment (SHLAA). Adjusted to take into account the effect of
the allocation of new sites in the planned adoption of the Sites and Policies DPD. The figures relating
to the proposed allocations are only estimates as the final allocations will not be yet known. However
the figures do give an indication of the likely effect of the propose allocations on the housing land
supply.

4.5 The trajectory also takes into account the re-distribution of small sites and the assumed yield
from small windfall sites shown in Paragraphs 80 to 82 of the Rotherham Core Strategy: Housing
and Economic Growth Background Paper (August 2013).

Annual Monitoring Report 201414

4
Page 21



2
7
/2
8

2
6
/2
7

2
5
/2
6

2
4
/2
5

2
3
/2
4

2
2
/2
3

2
1
/2
2

2
0
/2
1

1
9
/2
0

1
8
/1
9

1
7
/1
8

1
6
/1
7

1
5
/1
6

1
4
/1
5

1
3
/1
4

55
2

N
et
Ad
di
tio
ns

95
0

97
0

10
00

10
00

10
00

10
00

10
00

10
00

10
00

10
00

10
00

10
00

10
00

90
0

Pr
oj
ec
te
d
N
et
Ad
di
tio
ns

86
2

86
2

86
2

86
2

86
2

86
2

86
2

86
2

86
2

86
2

11
50

11
50

11
50

11
50

11
50

An
nu
al
Re
qu
ire
m
en
t

86
0

90
5

92
7

94
5

95
6

96
3

96
9

97
3

97
6

97
8

12
68

12
46

12
27

12
11

11
90

An
nu
al
Re
qu
ire
m
en
t
ta
ki
ng
in
to

ac
co
un
ta
ct
ua
l/
pr
oj
ec
te
d
co
m
pl
et
io
ns

15Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 22



5 Summary of findings

5.1 The Council is required to prepare an Annual Monitoring Report as part of the new Local
Development Framework (Local Plan). These Reports are required to be published every December
and will cover the preceding financial year. Reports are advised to contain a summary of findings as
follows:-

5.2 Purpose of Monitoring
Monitoring will be crucial to the effectiveness of the Local Plan which will need to be continually
reviewed. Annual monitoring reports will be the main way of assessing Local Plan performance and
effects. It should be recognised that it will take considerable time and resources to establish suitable
monitoring arrangements. This tenth Annual Monitoring Report is to be regarded as the next step
forward from previous years AMR's.

5.3 Practical considerations
It needs to be recognised that the AMR format and monitoring framework will evolve incrementally
as Local Plan documents and policies are prepared and eventually implemented. Currently the Council
does not have access to all the information and resources required to undertake comprehensive
monitoring. As in previous AMR's the emphasis of this report is drawing from readily available and
relevant indicators and data sources and identifying current gaps in data and how these might be
rectified. There have been significant changes from previous years in the indicators measured due
to the revocation of the Regional Spatial Strategy and scrapping of the National Indicator Set.

5.4 Objectives
It is intended to adopt an objectives – indicators – targets approach to Local Plan monitoring. Once
objectives have been identified and related policies developed, it is possible to select relevant output
indicators and set appropriate targets against which movement towards or away from policy objectives
can be measured over time.

5.5 Indicators
To reflect the objectives in the adopted Core Strategy the updated selection of indicators and targets
set out in the tables have been grouped under the seven broad themes of ‘Delivering Development
in Sustainable Locations’, ‘Creating Mixed and Attractive Places to Live’, ‘Supporting a Dynamic
Economy’, 'Movement and Accessibility', 'Managing the Natural and Historic Environment', 'Creating
Safe and Sustainable Communities' and ‘Infrastructure’. The indicators reflect the 17 broad objectives
and the 34 core policies within the Core Strategy that underpin these aims. This selection of indicators
will continue to be supplemented as the Local Plan monitoring framework evolves.

5.6 A full listing of the indicators monitored over the last year is shown in the next section along
with details of current performance, progress towards targets and general comments / explanations
for variance.

5.7 Changes to indicators
As outlined in the first AMR the suitability of indicators which are monitored will be continually checked
for alignment with changes that occur within national monitoring requirements and major Council
policies / strategies such as the Community Strategy and Corporate Plan. Many of the ‘Core Output’
indicators and the "Single Set of National Indicators" produced by the CLG have been scrapped so
there have been significant changes to the indicators measured in previous AMR’s.

Annual Monitoring Report 201416

5
Page 23



5.8 This AMR reports on the year to 31st March 2014 and although a number of the former
indicators remain relevant to Rotherham and have been retained there are also a significant number
of new indicators to align with the broad aims and objectives specified in the Core Strategy and
reflected in the 34 strategic policies.

5.9 For the 2013/2014 reporting period we have tried to incorporate indicators covering all 34
strategic policy areas within the adopted Core Strategy document, although in some circumstances
monitoring indicators and data sources are limited and historic data may not be available for
comparison. In a few cases monitoring indicators have yet to be decided.

5.10 Performance of all the indicators is shown in the tables in the following section but a brief
overview of the key changes and any progress over the last year is given here:

5.11 For all the indicators measuring the strategic themes / policies contained in the adopted Core
Strategy the performance over the year showed:

22 indicators have improved
19 indicators have shown no significant change from the baseline or updated data is unavailable
13 indicators have declined or are not on target

5.12 The relatively high number of indicators which are showing no change partly reflects a number
of measurement changes from previous AMRs resulting in new baseline positions and/or unavailability
of data updates.

17Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 24



5.13 A breakdown of performance by the six broad themes / headings (excluding infrastructure
for which monitoring indicators will be determined as part of the infrastructure delivery plan) is shown
below:

5.14 Good performance / improvements have been seen in -

A third of completed new builds were on previously developed land.
Increase in the number of affordable housing units (191 homes).
Vacancy rates on industrial and commercial property located on the main industrial parks of
Rotherham have decreased for the third consecutive year.
New business registration rate increases for the second consecutive year.
Public transport usage increase on previous year.
Condition of Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI's) improving.
Number / capacity of renewable energy generation schemes granted approval increased again.

Annual Monitoring Report 201418

5
Page 25



5.15 Poor performance / decline has been seen in -

Slight increase on 2012/13 but number of dwellings built continues to be below target despite
a continuing high level of permissions.
Percentage built within the Rotherham Urban area below Core Strategy target.
Vacancy rates on the primary shopping streets in Rotherham town centre has increased (by 3
'units' to 15.5%).
One additional listed building now 'at risk' according to English Heritage.
Household waste recycling rates have fallen for the second consecutive year.

5.16 The AMR is a convenient means of pulling out emerging issues on projects which will have
a bearing on the Local Plan and the future monitoring framework. There are a number of key projects
which, due to their large scale and potential impact, are mentioned in more detail here:

Waverley

5.17 Planning permission has been granted for a sustainable mixed use community with significant
housing provision at the former open-cast mining site at Waverley (a major previously developed
site), and development is now well under way on phase 1 of the scheme. At the end of March 2014
152 dwellings had been completed on the site. The planning permission includes 3,890 new dwellings,
of which it is estimated that 2,500 will be delivered in the Plan period to 2028. Major housing provision
will be required at this location in the long term to ensure continuity of housing supply in the
Rotherham / Sheffield market area. This will be subject to the achievement of significant improvements
to public transport and mitigation of congestion on the Parkway and M1 Junction 33 and the managed
release of housing land so as not to prejudice public sector interventions within other Sheffield and
Rotherham housing areas and to manage the impact of new residential development on the
surrounding communities.

Rotherham Town Centre

5.18 The town centre has suffered over recent years due in part to the close proximity of
Meadowhall and other out of town shopping centres. The Strategic Development Framework (SDF),
produced as part of Yorkshire Forward's Renaissance Towns initiative, set out a masterplan for
Rotherham town centre building on a broad 25 year vision and the 10 goals identified by the Town
Team. This has informed the preparation of the Core Strategy and Sites and Policies DPDs. The 2010
Rotherham Town Centre Retail and Leisure Study (Colliers CRE and The Retail Group), and 2011
borough-wide Retail and Leisure Study (Colliers International) have also been taken into account as
part of the Local Plan evidence base.

5.19 The Rotherham Renaissance initiative should help to attract more specialist shops and more
visitors to the town centre and encourage town centre living. Whilst the current financial situation
has impacted on a number of planned schemes progress on transforming the town centre continues.
The Westgate Demonstrator project has delivered new housing and retail units at Domine Lane and
Market Street. Imperial Buildings have also been refurbished with upper floors successfully converted
to residential units and a number of the new commercial units now trading. Work is complete on the
new railway station and RCAT have begun redeveloping their campus to provide modern learning
facilities. The former Guest and Chrimes site has been transformed with the construction and
occupation of new civic office and library accommodation at Riverside House and New York Stadium

19Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 26



which has brought Rotherham United close to the heart of the town. The site of the former All Saints
Building has been redeveloped as a pocket park and the vacant sites resulting from the relocation
of Council offices will present future redevelopment opportunities. Construction is underway of a new
Tesco store which will see the operator relocate from their present site at Forge Island to the Council's
former civic area at Walker Place. Phase 1 of the Rotherham Renaissance Flood Alleviation Scheme
has been completed, including a new wetland area at Centenary Riverside in Templeborough, with
Phase 2 expected to be delivered incrementally as development comes forward and funding from
other sources becomes available.

Bassingthorpe Farm

5.20 The Bassingthorpe Farm urban extension was identified as a broad location for growth in the
submission Core Strategy. At the Examination of the Core Strategy the Inspector was satisfied that
the detailed evidence supporting the future development of Bassingthorpe Farm was sufficient that
the site could be formalised as a strategic allocation. This is what he subsequently recommended in
his final report.

5.21 Following the Inspector’s decision, Bassingthorpe Farm can come forward before other sites
in the Sites & Policies document, providing a sustainable urban extension for the wider Rotherham
Urban Area. In total, the development will provide around 2,400 new homes with 1,700 homes being
delivered in this Plan period (up to 2028). The development will also provide around 11 hectares of
land for employment together with associated infrastructure requirements. The Bassingthorpe Farm
strategic allocation is shown as an “inset” boundary on the Policies Map that accompanies the Sites
and Policies document. Please refer to the Core Strategy for more details of this strategic allocation.
A masterplan for the development will be finalised before pursuing an outline planning application
for the site.

Annual Monitoring Report 201420

5
Page 27



6
Ta
bl
es
of
in
di
ca
to
rs

P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
K
ey
:

Im
pr
ov
in
g
/
O
n
Ta
rg
et
=

D
ec
lin
in
g
/
N
ot
on
Ta
rg
et
=

N
o
C
h
an
ge
/
N
o
U
pd
at
e
=

Ta
bl
e
A
:
D
el
iv
er
in
g
D
ev
el
op
m
en
t
in
Su
st
ai
n
ab
le
Lo
ca
ti
on
s

C
O
M
M
EN
TS

TA
R
G
ET
/
A
IM

IN
D
IC
A
TO
R

P
O
LI
C
Y
A
R
EA

Ta
rg
et
of
38
%
w
ith
in

Ro
th
er
ha
m
U
rb
an
ar
ea
(2
6%

+
12
%
fr
om

Ba
ss
in
gt
ho
rp
e

Fa
rm
).
Co
m
pl
et
io
n
pe
rc
en
ta
ge

sl
ig
ht
ly
be
lo
w
fo
r
RU
A

(B
as
si
ng
th
or
pe
ye
t
to
st
ar
t

be
in
g
de
ve
lo
pe
d
pe
nd
in
g

m
as
te
r-
pl
an
ni
ng
w
or
k)

En
co
ur
ag
e
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t
in

m
ai
n
ur
ba
n
ar
ea
s
in
lin
e
w
ith

ap
po
rt
io
nm
en
ts
by
se
tt
le
m
en
t

ty
pe
.

Pe
rc
en
ta
ge
of
ne
w

de
ve
lo
pm
en
t
w
ith
in
th
e

Ro
th
er
ha
m
U
rb
an
Ar
ea

CS
1:
D
el
iv
er
in
g
Ro
th
er
ha
m
's

Sp
at
ia
lS
tr
at
eg
y

Ta
rg
et
/
ap
po
rt
io
nm
en
tf
or
20
13
/1
4
=
23
.4
%
of
ho
us
in
g
w
ith
in

Ro
th
er
ha
m
U
rb
an
Ar
ea
ex
cl
ud
in
g
Ba
ss
in
gt
ho
rp
e
Fa
rm

(1
29
of

55
2
gr
os
s
co
m
pl
et
io
ns
)

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

Co
re
St
ra
te
gy
ta
rg
et
of
24
%
in

th
es
e
se
tt
le
m
en
ts
.T
ar
ge
tm
et
.

En
co
ur
ag
e
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t
in

de
fin
ed
se
tt
le
m
en
ts
-

24
%
(D
in
ni
ng
to
n/
An
st
on
/L
au
gh
to
n

Co
m
m
on
+

W
at
h/
Br
am
pt
on
/W
es
tM
el
to
n
+

Br
am
le
y/
W
ic
ke
rs
le
y/
Ra
ve
nf
ie
ld
)

Pe
rc
en
ta
ge
of
ne
w

de
ve
lo
pm
en
tw
ith
in
th
e
de
fin
ed

Pr
in
ci
pl
e
Se
tt
le
m
en
ts
fo
r

G
ro
w
th

CS
1:
D
el
iv
er
in
g
Ro
th
er
ha
m
's

Sp
at
ia
lS
tr
at
eg
y

Fo
r2
01
3/
14
25
.5
%
of
ho
us
in
g
w
ith
in
th
e
th
re
e
de
fin
ed
Pr
in
ci
pl
e

Se
tt
le
m
en
ts
fo
r
G
ro
w
th
(1
41
of
55
2
gr
os
s
co
m
pl
et
io
ns
,b
el
ow

su
gg
es
te
d
ta
rg
et
)

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

21Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 28



C
O
M
M
EN
TS

TA
R
G
ET
/
A
IM

IN
D
IC
A
TO
R

P
O
LI
C
Y
A
R
EA

An
y
m
on
ito
rin
g
in
di
ca
to
r
to
be

de
te
rm
in
ed
-
m
as
te
r
pl
an
ni
ng

To
be
se
t

To
be
de
ci
de
d

CS
2:
D
el
iv
er
in
g
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t

on
M
aj
or
Si
te
s

w
or
k
re
qu
ire
d
re
br
in
gi
ng

fo
rw
ar
d
st
ra
te
gi
c
al
lo
ca
tio
n
at

Ba
ss
in
gt
ho
rp
e
an
d
br
oa
d

lo
ca
tio
ns
fo
r
gr
ow
th

N
/a

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

N
o
ac
tu
al
ta
rg
et
as
th
is
w
ill

be
co
m
e
m
or
e
di
ff
ic
ul
ti
n
fu
tu
re

M
ax
im
is
e
th
e
am
ou
nt
of
ne
w

ho
us
in
g
w
hi
ch
is
bu
ilt
on

pr
ev
io
us
ly
de
ve
lo
pe
d
la
nd
.

Pe
rc
en
ta
ge
of
dw
el
lin
gs
on

pr
ev
io
us
ly
de
ve
lo
pe
d
la
nd

CS
3:
Lo
ca
tio
n
of
ne
w

de
ve
lo
pm
en
t

ye
ar
s
as
av
ai
la
bl
e
br
ow
nf
ie
ld

si
te
s
di
m
in
is
h.
Tw
o-
th
ird
s
bu
ilt

on
pd
lc
on
si
de
re
d
a
ve
ry
go
od

pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
.

O
ft
he
55
2
ne
w
bu
ild
s
in
20
13
/1
4
-
36
6
or
66
.3
%
w
er
e
bu
ilt
on

pr
ev
io
us
ly
de
ve
lo
pe
d
la
nd
.

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

In
di
ca
to
rf
ro
m
So
ut
h
Yo
rk
sh
ire

Lo
ca
lT
ra
ns
po
rt
Pl
an
(L
TP
3)

En
su
re
th
at
ne
w
ho
us
in
g
is

w
ith
in
ea
sy
re
ac
h
of
se
rv
ic
es

by
pu
bl
ic
tr
an
sp
or
t

Ac
ce
ss
ib
ili
ty
to
a
ra
ng
e
of

pl
ac
es
us
in
g
pu
bl
ic
tr
an
sp
or
t

CS
3:
Lo
ca
tio
n
of
ne
w

de
ve
lo
pm
en
t

N
ot
ye
t
av
ai
la
bl
e

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

Ju
st
2
pe
rm
is
si
on
s
bu
t
al
l

w
ith
in
cu
rt
ila
ge
of
G
re
en
Be
lt

Vi
lla
ge
s

M
ai
nt
ai
n
ge
ne
ra
le
xt
en
t
of
th
e

G
re
en
Be
lt
(n
on
e
to
be
lo
st
to

de
ve
lo
pm
en
t)

Ex
te
nt
of
G
re
en
Be
lt

CS
4:
G
re
en
Be
lt

Annual Monitoring Report 201422

6
Page 29



C
O
M
M
EN
TS

TA
R
G
ET
/
A
IM

IN
D
IC
A
TO
R

P
O
LI
C
Y
A
R
EA

N
on
e
lo
st
du
rin
g
th
e
ye
ar

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

N
o
pl
an
ni
ng
pe
rm
is
si
on
s
to
be

gr
an
te
d
fo
r
an
in
ap
pr
op
ria
te

us
e.

Pl
an
ni
ng
pe
rm
is
si
on
s
gr
an
te
d

on
G
re
en
Be
lt

CS
4:
G
re
en
Be
lt

N
on
e
gr
an
te
d
fo
r
in
ap
pr
op
ria
te
us
e
du
rin
g
th
e
ye
ar

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

Sa
fe
gu
ar
de
d
la
nd
to
be

fin
al
is
ed
/
id
en
tif
ie
d

N
o
pl
an
ni
ng
pe
rm
is
si
on
s
to
be

gr
an
te
d
fo
r
an
in
ap
pr
op
ria
te

us
e.

Pl
an
ni
ng
pe
rm
is
si
on
s
gr
an
te
d

on
Sa
fe
gu
ar
de
d
La
nd

CS
5:
Sa
fe
gu
ar
de
d
La
nd

Sa
fe
gu
ar
de
d
la
nd
ha
s
be
en
id
en
tif
ie
d
in
fin
al
dr
af
t
si
te
s
an
d

po
lic
ie
s
D
PD

-
su
bj
ec
t
to
co
ns
ul
ta
tio
n.

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

23Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 30



P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
K
ey
:

Im
pr
ov
in
g
/
O
n
Ta
rg
et
=

D
ec
lin
in
g
/
N
ot
on
Ta
rg
et
=

N
o
C
h
an
ge
/
N
o
U
pd
at
e
=

Ta
bl
e
B
:
C
re
at
in
g
M
ix
ed
an
d
A
tt
ra
ct
iv
e
P
la
ce
s
to
Li
ve

C
O
M
M
EN
TS

TA
R
G
ET
/
A
IM

IN
D
IC
A
TO
R

P
O
LI
C
Y
A
R
EA

D
CL
G
Co
re
ou
tp
ut
in
di
ca
to
r
-

no
w
ba
se
d
on
lo
ca
lly
de
riv
ed

ta
rg
et

H
ou
si
ng
tr
aj
ec
to
ry
-
m
ai
nt
ai
n

bu
ild
ra
te
ov
er
th
e
pl
an
pe
rio
d.

Pl
an
Pe
rio
d
an
d
ho
us
in
g

ta
rg
et
s

CS
6:
M
ee
tin
g
th
e
H
ou
si
ng

Re
qu
ire
m
en
t

Fo
r
lo
ca
lly
de
riv
ed
ta
rg
et
(8
50
pa
)
20
08
/0
9
to
20
13
/1
4
=
5,
10
0,

ac
tu
al
=
3,
18
1

Pl
an
Pe
rio
d
Fi
rs
t
Ye
ar
20
13
/1
4
ta
rg
et
=
95
8,
ac
tu
al
=
55
2

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

D
CL
G
Co
re
ou
tp
ut
in
di
ca
to
r
-

no
w
ba
se
d
on
lo
ca
lly
de
riv
ed

ta
rg
et
of
85
0
pa
(9
58
in
cl
ud
in
g

ba
ck
lo
g
fr
om

20
08
/0
9
to

20
12
/1
3)
.N
ot
re
ac
he
d
bu
t

sl
ig
ht
in
cr
ea
se
on
pr
ev
io
us
ye
ar

-
pa
rt
ly
a
re
fle
ct
io
n
of

co
nt
in
ui
ng
cu
rr
en
t
ho
us
in
g

m
ar
ke
t
co
nd
iti
on
s
as

ou
ts
ta
nd
in
g
pe
rm
is
si
on
s

re
m
ai
n
hi
gh
.

To
en
su
re
dw
el
lin
gs
bu
ilt
re
ac
h

10
0%

of
th
e
an
nu
al
ho
us
in
g

re
qu
ire
m
en
t.

Lo
ca
lt
ar
ge
t
of
85
0p
a
(9
58

in
cl
ud
in
g
ba
ck
lo
g
fr
om

20
08
/0
9

to
20
12
/1
3)

N
et
ad
di
tio
na
ld
w
el
lin
gs
du
rin
g

th
e
ye
ar

CS
6:
M
ee
tin
g
th
e
H
ou
si
ng

Re
qu
ire
m
en
t

N
et
ad
di
tio
na
ld
w
el
lin
gs
in
20
13
/1
4
=
55
2
(5
52
G
ro
ss
-
0

de
m
ol
iti
on
s)

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

Annual Monitoring Report 201424

6
Page 31



C
O
M
M
EN
TS

TA
R
G
ET
/
A
IM

IN
D
IC
A
TO
R

P
O
LI
C
Y
A
R
EA

D
CL
G
Co
re
ou
tp
ut
in
di
ca
to
r
-

no
w
ba
se
d
on
lo
ca
lly
de
riv
ed

ta
rg
et
.L
at
es
t
SH
LA
A
sh
ow
s

cl
os
e
to
5
ye
ar
su
pp
ly
bu
t
no
t

w
he
n
fa
ct
or
in
g
in
th
e
sh
or
tf
al
l

fr
om

20
08
pl
us
th
e
ad
di
tio
na
l

20
%
.

H
av
e
de
liv
er
ab
le
la
nd
to

ac
co
m
m
od
at
e
at
le
as
t
fiv
e

tim
es
th
e
an
nu
al
ho
us
in
g

re
qu
ire
m
en
tp
lu
s
an
ad
di
tio
na
l

20
%
un
til
it
ca
n
be

de
m
on
st
ra
te
d
th
at
th
e
ho
us
in
g

ta
rg
et
is
be
in
g
m
et
(w
he
n
an

ad
di
tio
na
l5
%
w
ill
be
in
cl
ud
ed
)

Fi
ve
ye
ar
su
pp
ly
of
la
nd
fo
r

ho
us
in
g

CS
6:
M
ee
tin
g
th
e
H
ou
si
ng

Re
qu
ire
m
en
t

Re
qu
ire
m
en
t
in
cl
ud
in
g
ad
di
tio
na
lt
o
ac
co
un
t
fo
r

ba
ck
lo
g/
un
de
r-
su
pp
ly
si
nc
e
20
08
=
93
5p
a;
5
ye
ar
su
pp
ly

th
er
ef
or
e
=
4,
79
0
pl
us
20
%
=
5,
74
8

La
te
st
SH
LA
A
sh
ow
in
g
5
ye
ar
su
pp
ly
of
3,
88
2

(b
as
ed
on
es
tim
at
e
us
in
g
ne
w
pe
rm
is
si
on
s,
co
m
pl
et
io
ns
an
d

la
ps
ed
pe
rm
is
si
on
s
si
nc
e
th
e
la
te
st
SH
LA
A)

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

D
CL
G
Co
re
ou
tp
ut
in
di
ca
to
r.

In
cr
ea
se
on
fig
ur
e
fo
rp
re
vi
ou
s

ye
ar

To
in
cr
ea
se
th
e
nu
m
be
r
of

af
fo
rd
ab
le
ho
m
es
bu
ilt
an
d

m
ee
ti
de
nt
ifi
ed
re
qu
ire
m
en
tf
or

th
e
ye
ar

G
ro
ss
af
fo
rd
ab
le
ho
us
in
g

co
m
pl
et
io
ns

CS
7:
H
ou
si
ng
M
ix
an
d

Af
fo
rd
ab
ili
ty

20
13
/1
4:
G
ro
ss
co
m
pl
et
io
ns
=
19
1

(1
07
in
pr
ev
io
us
ye
ar
)

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

Av
oi
di
ng
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t
of
le
ss

th
an
30
pe
r
he
ct
ar
e,
al
th
ou
gh

th
is
is
un
av
oi
da
bl
e
on
so
m
e

si
te
s.
Lo
w
de
ns
ity
pe
rc
en
ta
ge

in
cr
ea
se
d
on
pr
ev
io
us
ye
ar
.

Pr
ov
id
e
a
ra
ng
e
of
ho
us
in
g

ty
pe
s
to
m
ee
ti
de
nt
ifi
ed
ne
ed
s.

D
en
si
ty
of
co
m
pl
et
ed
dw
el
lin
gs

-
%
co
m
pl
et
ed
at

<
30
,3
0
to

50
,>
50
dw
el
lin
gs
pe
r
he
ct
ar
e

CS
7:
H
ou
si
ng
M
ix
an
d

Af
fo
rd
ab
ili
ty

25Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 32



C
O
M
M
EN
TS

TA
R
G
ET
/
A
IM

IN
D
IC
A
TO
R

P
O
LI
C
Y
A
R
EA

20
13
/1
4
:
<
30
=
33
.9
%
,3
0
to
50
=
60
.3
%
,>
50
=
5.
8%

(n
um
be
r/
pe
rc
en
ta
ge
bu
ilt
at
<
30
dp
h
in
cr
ea
se
d
on
pr
ev
io
us

ye
ar
)

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

D
CL
G
Co
re
ou
tp
ut
in
di
ca
to
r.
To

be
id
en
tif
ie
d
as
pa
rt
of
th
e

Lo
ca
lP
la
n
pr
oc
es
s

M
ee
t
id
en
tif
ie
d
ne
ed
s
-
to
be

se
t

N
et
ad
di
tio
na
lG
yp
sy
an
d

Tr
av
el
le
r
pi
tc
he
s
pr
ov
id
ed

CS
8:
G
yp
sy
an
d
tr
av
el
le
r

ac
co
m
m
od
at
io
n

5
ne
w
pi
tc
he
s
pr
ov
id
ed
in
th
e
ye
ar
20
13
/1
4

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

Annual Monitoring Report 201426

6
Page 33



P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
K
ey
:

Im
pr
ov
in
g
/
O
n
Ta
rg
et
=

D
ec
lin
in
g
/
N
ot
on
Ta
rg
et
=

N
o
C
h
an
ge
/
N
o
U
pd
at
e
=

Ta
bl
e
C
:
Su
pp
or
ti
n
g
a
D
yn
am
ic
Ec
on
om
y

C
O
M
M
EN
TS

TA
R
G
ET
/
A
IM

IN
D
IC
A
TO
R

P
O
LI
C
Y
A
R
EA

Fr
om

O
N
S
bu
si
ne
ss

de
m
og
ra
ph
y
da
ta
se
t.
D
at
a

re
le
as
ed
in
ar
re
ar
s
so
re
la
te
s

to
pr
ev
io
us
ye
ar
/
pe
rio
d.

In
cr
ea
se
th
e
nu
m
be
r
of

st
ar
t-
up
bu
si
ne
ss
es
in

Ro
th
er
ha
m

N
ew

bu
si
ne
ss
re
gi
st
ra
tio
n
ra
te

CS
9:
Tr
an
sf
or
m
in
g

Ro
th
er
ha
m
's
ec
on
om
y

20
12
=
35
.2
bu
si
ne
ss
bi
rt
hs
pe
r
10
,0
00
ad
ul
t
po
pu
la
tio
n
(u
p

fr
om

33
.3
in
20
11
an
d
30
.6
in
20
10
,r
ef
le
ct
in
g
si
gn
s
of
re
co
ve
ry

fr
om

re
ce
ss
io
n)

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

RM
BC
in
du
st
ria
le
st
at
es
su
rv
ey

Ai
m
fo
r
a
hi
gh
oc
cu
pa
nc
y
on

al
li
nd
us
tr
ia
la
re
as
in
th
e

bo
ro
ug
h
bu
t
w
ith
su
ff
ic
ie
nt

va
ca
nt
un
its
to
al
lo
w
fo
rc
ho
ic
e

an
d
'c
hu
rn
'i
n
th
e
m
ar
ke
t

pl
ac
e.

Va
ca
nc
y
ra
te
fo
r
in
du
st
ria
la
nd

co
m
m
er
ci
al
pr
op
er
ty

CS
9:
Tr
an
sf
or
m
in
g

Ro
th
er
ha
m
's
ec
on
om
y

Su
rv
ey
at
en
d
of
20
13
sh
ow
s
va
ca
nc
y
ra
te
at
10
.4
%
,

im
pr
ov
em
en
to
n
pr
ev
io
us
ye
ar
s
(1
1.
8%

in
20
12
an
d
13
.8
%
en
d

of
20
11
).

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

O
N
S
An
nu
al
Po
pu
la
tio
n
Su
rv
ey

da
ta
-
Ro
th
er
ha
m
's

em
pl
oy
m
en
t
ra
te
ha
s
sh
ow
n

lit
tle
ch
an
ge
bu
t
re
la
tiv
e

po
si
tio
n
w
or
se
ag
ai
ns
tr
eg
io
na
l

an
d
na
tio
na
lr
at
es
ov
er
th
e
la
st

12
m
on
th
s.

To
cl
os
e
th
e
ga
p
to
th
e

re
gi
on
al
an
d
na
tio
na
la
ve
ra
ge
s

O
ve
ra
ll
em
pl
oy
m
en
tr
at
e
in
th
e

bo
ro
ug
h

CS
9:
Tr
an
sf
or
m
in
g

Ro
th
er
ha
m
's
ec
on
om
y

27Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 34



C
O
M
M
EN
TS

TA
R
G
ET
/
A
IM

IN
D
IC
A
TO
R

P
O
LI
C
Y
A
R
EA

At
M
ar
ch
20
14
em
pl
oy
m
en
t
ra
te
at
66
.9
%
(f
ro
m
67
.0
%
at

M
ar
13
).
G
ap
to
re
gi
on
al
an
d
na
tio
na
lr
at
es
re
sp
ec
tiv
el
y
at
3.
2

an
d
4.
8
(2
.7
an
d
3.
9
at
M
ar
ch
20
13
)

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

RM
BC
In
du
st
ria
lE
st
at
es
Su
rv
ey

-
Co
nt
in
ui
ng
in
cr
ea
se
in

ov
er
al
lf
lo
or
sp
ac
e.
Am
ou
nt

de
ve
lo
pe
d
ha
s
in
cr
ea
se
d
on

pr
ev
io
us
ye
ar
bu
t
am
ou
nt

be
in
g
de
ve
lo
pe
d
re
m
ai
ns
be
lo
w

th
e
lo
ng
er
te
rm

av
er
ag
e.

In
cr
ea
se
em
pl
oy
m
en
t

flo
or
sp
ac
e
an
d
en
su
re

av
ai
la
bi
lit
y
of
a
va
rie
ty
of
si
te
s

Am
ou
nt
of
flo
or
sp
ac
e

de
ve
lo
pe
d
fo
r
em
pl
oy
m
en
t
by

ty
pe

CS
9:
Tr
an
sf
or
m
in
g

Ro
th
er
ha
m
's
ec
on
om
y

20
13
/1
4
=
42
,1
02
sq
m
(B
1a
=
0,
B1
b
=
22
,6
00
,B
1c
=
3,
27
1,

B2
=
13
,7
68
,B
8
=
23
2
pl
us
ot
he
r
co
m
m
er
ci
al
of
2,
23
1
sq
m

bu
ilt
on
em
pl
oy
m
en
t
la
nd
,)

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

M
in
im
um

of
5
ye
ar
s
su
pp
ly
bu
t

al
so
su
ff
ic
ie
nt
fo
r
lo
ng
er
-t
er
m
.

Cu
rr
en
tly
co
ns
id
er
ed
su
ff
ic
ie
nt

w
ith
ad
di
tio
na
ll
an
d
to
be

id
en
tif
ie
d
w
ith
in
th
e
Si
te
s
&

Po
lic
ie
s
D
PD

fo
r
th
e
lo
ng
er

te
rm
.

To
en
su
re
su
ff
ic
ie
nt
fo
r

lo
ng
-t
er
m
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t

Em
pl
oy
m
en
t
la
nd
av
ai
la
bl
e

CS
9:
Tr
an
sf
or
m
in
g

Ro
th
er
ha
m
's
ec
on
om
y

At
31
/0
3/
14
=
19
5.
8
ha
(1
0.
5
ha
de
ve
lo
pe
d
in
th
e
ye
ar
,s
m
al
l

in
cr
ea
se
on
pr
ev
io
us
ye
ar
)

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

Re
vi
ew

un
de
rt
ak
en
in
20
10
,

ne
xt
w
as
du
e
20
13
/1
4
an
d

em
pl
oy
m
en
t
la
nd
re
vi
ew
ed
as

pa
rt
of
w
or
k
on
Si
te
s
&
Po
lic
ie
s

D
PD
.

An
EL
R
to
be
un
de
rt
ak
en
ev
er
y

3
ye
ar
s
to
en
su
re
re
qu
ire
m
en
ts

an
d
su
ita
bi
lit
y
of
si
te
s
ar
e

re
gu
la
rly
m
ai
nt
ai
ne
d
an
d

re
vi
ew
ed
.

Em
pl
oy
m
en
t
la
nd
re
vi
ew

un
de
rt
ak
en

CS
9:
Tr
an
sf
or
m
in
g

Ro
th
er
ha
m
's
ec
on
om
y

Annual Monitoring Report 201428

6
Page 35



C
O
M
M
EN
TS

TA
R
G
ET
/
A
IM

IN
D
IC
A
TO
R

P
O
LI
C
Y
A
R
EA

W
or
k
do
ne
on
em
pl
oy
m
en
t
as
pa
rt
of
Si
te
s
&
Po
lic
ie
s
w
or
k
bu
t

fu
ll
EL
R
to
be
co
m
pl
et
ed
..

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

Ta
ke
n
fr
om

O
N
S
An
nu
al

Po
pu
la
tio
n
Su
rv
ey
(D
ec
em
be
r)
.

N
ot
e
th
at
th
is
is
su
rv
ey
ba
se
d

da
ta
so
su
bj
ec
t
to
so
m
e

flu
ct
ua
tio
ns
(2
01
3
sh
ow
s

im
pr
ov
em
en
t
at
N
VQ
2
an
d
3,

fa
ll
at
N
VQ
4)
)

In
cr
ea
se
th
e
m
in
im
um

le
ve
lo
f

qu
al
ifi
ca
tio
ns
of
th
e
lo
ca
l

w
or
kf
or
ce

Pe
rc
en
ta
ge
of
w
or
ki
ng
ag
e

po
pu
la
tio
n
ed
uc
at
ed
to
at
le
as
t

N
VQ
2+
,N
VQ
3+
,N
VQ
4+

CS
10
:
Im
pr
ov
in
g
sk
ill
s
an
d

em
pl
oy
m
en
t
op
po
rt
un
iti
es

At
D
ec
em
be
r2
01
3:
N
VQ
2+

=
65
.7
%
,N
VQ
3+

=
47
.3
%
,N
VQ
4+

=
21
.6
%
(D
ec
12
fig
ur
es
at
64
.7
%
,4
5.
1%

,2
2.
9%

)
C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

Ch
an
ge
of
us
e
m
ea
su
re

En
co
ur
ag
e
an
in
cr
ea
se
in
ru
ra
l

di
ve
rs
ifi
ca
tio
n
sc
he
m
es
in
th
e

bo
ro
ug
h.

N
um
be
r
of
ru
ra
ld
iv
er
si
fic
at
io
n

sc
he
m
es

CS
11
:
To
ur
is
m
an
d
th
e
vi
si
to
r

ec
on
om
y

3
di
ve
rs
ifi
ca
tio
n
sc
he
m
es
fo
r
3
un
its
ap
pr
ov
ed

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

RM
BC

To
w
n
Ce
nt
re
Su
rv
ey
s

(S
ep
te
m
be
r
20
14
)

Re
du
ce
th
e
nu
m
be
r
of
em
pt
y

pr
op
er
tie
s
ac
ro
ss
th
e
m
ai
n

re
ta
il
/
se
rv
ic
e
ce
nt
re
s.

Va
ca
nc
y
ra
te
s
in
th
e
bo
ro
ug
h'
s

to
w
n
an
d
di
st
ric
t
ce
nt
re
s

CS
12
:
M
an
ag
in
g
ch
an
ge
in

Ro
th
er
ha
m
's
Re
ta
il
an
d
Se
rv
ic
e

Ce
nt
re
s

O
ve
ra
ll
va
ca
nc
y
ra
te
s
(b
as
ed
on
un
its
)
ac
ro
ss
al
ld
ef
in
ed
to
w
n

ce
nt
re
s
in
th
e
bo
ro
ug
h
ha
s
fa
lle
n
sl
ig
ht
ly
to
13
.3
%
,d
ow
n
fr
om

13
.6
%
in
20
13
[A
ll
Ro
th
er
ha
m
to
w
n
ce
nt
re
in
cr
ea
se
d
sl
ig
ht
ly

fr
om

20
.1
%
to
22
.6
%
,a
ll
ot
he
r
to
w
n
ce
nt
re
s
fe
ll
fr
om

10
.2
%

to
7.
6%

].
O
n
ba
la
nc
e
lit
tle
ov
er
al
lc
ha
ng
e.

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

29Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 36



C
O
M
M
EN
TS

TA
R
G
ET
/
A
IM

IN
D
IC
A
TO
R

P
O
LI
C
Y
A
R
EA

RM
BC

su
rv
ey

N
ew

re
ta
il
flo
or
sp
ac
e
to
be

en
co
ur
ag
ed
in
to
w
n
ce
nt
re
s,

di
sc
ou
ra
ge
d
in
ou
t
of
to
w
n

lo
ca
tio
ns

Am
ou
nt
of
ne
w
flo
or
sp
ac
e
in

to
w
n
an
d
di
st
ric
t
ce
nt
re
s

CS
12
:
M
an
ag
in
g
ch
an
ge
in

Ro
th
er
ha
m
's
Re
ta
il
an
d
Se
rv
ic
e

Ce
nt
re
s

N
o
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
ne
w
re
ta
il
flo
or
sp
ac
e
in
to
w
n
ce
nt
re
du
rin
g
th
e

ye
ar
,s
m
al
lu
ni
ts
bu
ilt
at
M
an
ve
rs
La
ke
si
de
(a
pp
ro
x
91
1
sq
m

ou
t
of
to
w
n)

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

RM
BC

To
w
n
Ce
nt
re
Su
rv
ey
s

(S
ep
te
m
be
r
20
13
)

Re
du
ce
th
e
nu
m
be
r
of
em
pt
y

pr
op
er
tie
s
w
ith
in
Ro
th
er
ha
m

to
w
n
ce
nt
re

Va
ca
nc
y
ra
te
on
pr
im
ar
y

sh
op
pi
ng
ar
ea
in
th
e
to
w
n

ce
nt
re

CS
13
:
Tr
an
sf
or
m
in
g

Ro
th
er
ha
m
To
w
n
Ce
nt
re

W
ith
in
th
e
pr
im
ar
y
sh
op
pi
ng
ar
ea
s
th
e
nu
m
be
r
of
va
ca
nt
un
its

in
cr
ea
se
d
fr
om

20
(1
3.
7%

)
in
20
13

to
23
(1
5.
5%

)
in
20
14
.

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

Annual Monitoring Report 201430

6
Page 37



P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
K
ey
:

Im
pr
ov
in
g
/
O
n
Ta
rg
et
=

D
ec
lin
in
g
/
N
ot
on
Ta
rg
et
=

N
o
C
h
an
ge
/
N
o
U
pd
at
e
=

Ta
bl
e
D
:
M
ov
em
en
t
an
d
A
cc
es
si
bi
lit
y

C
O
M
M
EN
TS

TA
R
G
ET
/
A
IM

IN
D
IC
A
TO
R

P
O
LI
C
Y
A
R
EA

Co
m
m
er
ci
al
/
re
ta
il

de
ve
lo
pm
en
ts
as
se
ss
ed

Al
ld
ev
el
op
m
en
ts
to
be
in

co
m
pl
ia
nc
e

Pe
rc
en
ta
ge
of
co
m
pl
et
ed

no
n-
re
si
de
nt
ia
ld
ev
el
op
m
en
t

CS
14
:
Ac
ce
ss
ib
le
pl
ac
es
an
d

m
an
ag
in
g
de
m
an
d
fo
r
tr
av
el

co
m
pl
yi
ng
w
ith
ca
r
pa
rk
in
g

st
an
da
rd
s
se
t
ou
t
in
th
e

Co
un
ci
l's
cu
rr
en
t
pa
rk
in
g

st
an
da
rd
s

Al
ld
ev
el
op
m
en
ts
in
co
m
pl
ia
nc
e
du
rin
g
th
e
ye
ar

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

So
ut
h
Yo
rk
sh
ire
Pa
ss
en
ge
r

Tr
an
sp
or
t
Ex
ec
ut
iv
e,
LT
P3

in
di
ca
to
r

In
cr
ea
se
in
pu
bl
ic
tr
an
sp
or
t

us
ag
e

Pu
bl
ic
tr
an
sp
or
tp
at
ro
na
ge
an
d

m
od
al
sh
ar
e

CS
14
:
Ac
ce
ss
ib
le
pl
ac
es
an
d

m
an
ag
in
g
de
m
an
d
fo
r
tr
av
el

In
20
13
pu
bl
ic
tr
an
sp
or
t
sh
ar
e
=
17
.0
%
(u
p
fr
om

16
.2
%
).
Ca
r

jo
ur
ne
ys
do
w
n
fr
om

79
.3
%
to
78
.1
%
.

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

So
ut
h
Yo
rk
sh
ire
Pa
ss
en
ge
r

Tr
an
sp
or
t
Ex
ec
ut
iv
e,
LT
P3

in
di
ca
to
r

In
cr
ea
se
w
al
ki
ng
an
d
cy
cl
in
g

sh
ar
e
of
jo
ur
ne
ys
m
ad
e

W
al
k
/
cy
cl
e
m
od
al
sh
ar
e

CS
14
:
Ac
ce
ss
ib
le
pl
ac
es
an
d

m
an
ag
in
g
de
m
an
d
fo
r
tr
av
el

W
al
k
/
cy
cl
e
m
od
al
sh
ar
e
re
m
ai
ns
at
1.
7%

(n
o
ch
an
ge
).

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

So
ut
h
Yo
rk
sh
ire
Pa
ss
en
ge
r

Tr
an
sp
or
t
Ex
ec
ut
iv
e,
LT
P3

in
di
ca
to
r

Re
du
ce
nu
m
be
r
be
in
g
ki
lle
d
or

se
rio
us
ly
in
ju
re
d

N
um
be
rs
ki
lle
d
or
se
rio
us
ly

in
ju
re
d
on
th
e
bo
ro
ug
h'
s
ro
ad
s

CS
14
:
Ac
ce
ss
ib
le
pl
ac
es
an
d

m
an
ag
in
g
de
m
an
d
fo
r
tr
av
el

31Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 38



C
O
M
M
EN
TS

TA
R
G
ET
/
A
IM

IN
D
IC
A
TO
R

P
O
LI
C
Y
A
R
EA

M
ea
su
re
d
on
5
ye
ar
av
er
ag
e.
To
20
09
=
99
,f
iv
e
ye
ar
av
er
ag
e

to
20
13
re
du
ce
d
to
87
.

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

So
ut
h
Yo
rk
sh
ire
PT
E
-
LT
P3
.

M
iti
ga
te
th
e
im
pa
ct
of

in
cr
ea
si
ng
ca
r
ow
ne
rs
hi
p
an
d

us
ag
e
on
co
ng
es
tio
n
on
th
e

ke
y
ro
ut
es
ar
ou
nd
Ro
th
er
ha
m

Co
ng
es
tio
n
-
ve
hi
cl
e
sp
ee
d

du
rin
g
th
e
w
ee
kd
ay
m
or
ni
ng

pe
ak

CS
15
:
Ke
y
Ro
ut
es
an
d
th
e

St
ra
te
gi
c
Ro
ad
N
et
w
or
k

M
ay
20
11
=
28
.8
m
ph
,M
ay
20
12
=
28
.1
m
ph
,M
ay
20
13
=
26
.6

m
ph
.-
av
er
ag
e
sp
ee
d
de
cr
ea
se
d
in
th
e
ye
ar
.

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

So
ut
h
Yo
rk
sh
ire
PT
E
-
LT
P3
.

Im
pr
ov
e
pu
bl
ic
tr
an
sp
or
t

Pu
bl
ic
tr
an
sp
or
t
pu
nc
tu
al
ity
,

re
lia
bi
lit
y
an
d
jo
ur
ne
y
tim
es

CS
15
:
Ke
y
Ro
ut
es
an
d
th
e

St
ra
te
gi
c
Ro
ad
N
et
w
or
k

Bu
s
pu
nc
tu
al
ity
20
13
/1
4
=
92
.0
%
(u
p
fr
om

90
.5
%
)

Bu
s
re
lia
bi
lit
y
=
99
.1
%
(u
p
fr
om

98
.3
%
)

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

N
o
si
gn
ifi
ca
nt
in
cr
ea
se
in
ca
pa
ci
ty
ex
pe
ct
ed
,b
ut
-

A5
7
ro
ad
im
pr
ov
em
en
ts
co
m
pe
te
;
M
1
J3
2-
J3
5
im
pr
ov
em
en
ts
on
-g
oi
ng
;
Ro
th
er
ha
m
-S
he
ff
ie
ld

Ra
pi
d
Bu
s
Tr
an
si
t
sc
he
m
e
go
-a
he
ad
/s
ta
rt

CS
16
:
N
ew

ro
ad
s

N
o
in
di
ca
to
r
-
m
ea
su
re
m
en
t
su
gg
es
te
d
(f
or
in
fo
rm
at
io
n)

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

Su
pp
or
t
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t
of
ra
il

ne
tw
or
k
by
sa
fe
gu
ar
di
ng
la
nd

fo
r
lo
ca
lr
ai
lp
ro
je
ct
s

La
nd
fo
r
lo
ca
lr
ai
lp
ro
je
ct
s
no
t

to
be
lo
st
fo
r
ot
he
r

de
ve
lo
pm
en
t

CS
17
:
Pa
ss
en
ge
r
ra
il

co
nn
ec
tio
ns

N
on
e
lo
st

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

Annual Monitoring Report 201432

6
Page 39



C
O
M
M
EN
TS

TA
R
G
ET
/
A
IM

IN
D
IC
A
TO
R

P
O
LI
C
Y
A
R
EA

So
ut
h
Yo
rk
sh
ire
Pa
ss
en
ge
r

Tr
an
sp
or
t
Ex
ec
ut
iv
e,
LT
P3

in
di
ca
to
r.
N
o
up
da
te
av
ai
la
bl
e

cu
rr
en
tly
.

To
be
se
t

Am
ou
nt
of
go
od
s
ca
rr
ie
d
-

D
ep
ar
tm
en
t
fo
r
Tr
an
sp
or
t,

Co
nt
in
ui
ng
Su
rv
ey
of
Ro
ad

G
oo
ds
Tr
an
sp
or
t

CS
18
:
Fr
ei
gh
t

In
20
10
fo
r
So
ut
h
Yo
rk
sh
ire
=
34
M
ill
io
n
to
nn
es
,3
,0
59
m
ill
io
n

to
nn
e
ki
lo
m
et
re
s
(u
p
fr
om

25
an
d
2,
35
4
in
20
09
)

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

33Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 40



P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
K
ey
:

Im
pr
ov
in
g
/
O
n
Ta
rg
et
=

D
ec
lin
in
g
/
N
ot
on
Ta
rg
et
=

N
o
C
h
an
ge
/
N
o
U
pd
at
e
=

Ta
bl
e
E:
M
an
ag
in
g
th
e
N
at
u
ra
la
n
d
H
is
to
ri
c
En
vi
ro
n
m
en
t

C
O
M
M
EN
TS

TA
R
G
ET
/
A
IM

IN
D
IC
A
TO
R

P
O
LI
C
Y
A
R
EA

Th
is
in
di
ca
to
rt
o
be
de
ve
lo
pe
d.

N
o
ta
rg
et
se
t

N
um
be
r
of
ne
w
gr
ee
n

in
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
pr
oj
ec
ts

de
ve
lo
pe
d

CS
19
:
G
re
en
In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

N
o
da
ta

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

RM
BC

G
re
en
Sp
ac
es
.D
ue
to

co
st
on
ly
1
pu
t
fo
rw
ar
d
fo
r

aw
ar
d
bu
t
ac
hi
ev
ed
.

Ta
rg
et
of
1
Co
un
tr
y
Pa
rk
s
/

U
rb
an
Pa
rk
s

N
um
be
r
of
pa
rk
s
w
ith
a
G
re
en

Fl
ag
aw
ar
d

CS
19
:
G
re
en
In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re

Ac
hi
ev
ed
1
th
is
ye
ar
(t
ar
ge
t
ac
hi
ev
ed
)

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

N
at
io
na
lt
ar
ge
ti
s
to
re
ac
h
95
%

fa
vo
ur
ab
le
(o
r
un
fa
vo
ur
ab
le

re
co
ve
rin
g)
-
N
at
ur
al
En
gl
an
d.

In
cr
ea
se
re
co
rd
ed
on
pr
ev
io
us

ye
ar
.

Re
ac
h
na
tio
na
lt
ar
ge
t

Co
nd
iti
on
of
Si
te
s
of
Sp
ec
ia
l

Sc
ie
nt
ifi
c
In
te
re
st
(S
SS
I's
)
in

th
e
bo
ro
ug
h

CS
20
:
Bi
od
iv
er
si
ty
/

G
eo
di
ve
rs
ity

N
at
ur
al
En
gl
an
d
la
te
st
da
ta
at
Ju
ly
20
14
sh
ow
s
SS
SI
's
of
14
7.
9h
a

of
w
hi
ch
76
.4
%
fa
vo
ur
ab
le
,2
0.
8%

un
fa
vo
ur
ab
le
re
co
ve
rin
g
an
d

2.
8%

un
fa
vo
ur
ab
le
de
cl
in
in
g
or
no
ch
an
ge
.(
in
cr
ea
se
in

fa
vo
ur
ab
le
/
re
du
ct
io
n
in
de
cl
in
in
g
fr
om

pr
ev
io
us
ye
ar
)

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

D
CL
G
Co
re
ou
tp
ut
in
di
ca
to
r
-

Lo
ca
lW
ild
lif
e
Sy
st
em

Pr
op
or
tio
n
of
si
te
s
of

im
po
rt
an
ce
to
bi
od
iv
er
si
ty
an
d

Ch
an
ge
s
in
ar
ea
s
of

bi
od
iv
er
si
ty
im
po
rt
an
ce

CS
20
:
Bi
od
iv
er
si
ty
/

G
eo
di
ve
rs
ity

ge
od
iv
er
si
ty
th
at
ar
e
in
po
si
tiv
e

m
an
ag
em
en
t

Annual Monitoring Report 201434

6
Page 41



C
O
M
M
EN
TS

TA
R
G
ET
/
A
IM

IN
D
IC
A
TO
R

P
O
LI
C
Y
A
R
EA

In
20
14
26
%
of
si
te
s
ar
e
in
po
si
tiv
e
m
an
ag
em
en
t

(t
o
ac
t
as
ba
se
lin
e)

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

So
ut
h
Yo
rk
sh
ire
Fo
re
st
fig
ur
es

In
cr
ea
se
th
e
pe
rc
en
ta
ge
of

ar
ea
in
th
e
bo
ro
ug
h
co
ve
re
d

by
w
oo
dl
an
d

Am
ou
nt
of
la
nd
co
ve
re
d
by

w
oo
dl
an
d

CS
21
:
La
nd
sc
ap
e

3,
05
3
ha
;
10
.6
3%

of
th
e
bo
ro
ug
h

(n
o
up
da
te
fr
om

pr
ev
io
us
ye
ar
s
pr
ov
id
ed
/
av
ai
la
bl
e)

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

N
at
ur
al
En
gl
an
d

ag
ri-
en
vi
ro
nm
en
t
sc
he
m
e

In
cr
ea
se
th
e
ar
ea
of
la
nd

un
de
r
en
vi
ro
nm
en
ta
l

m
an
ag
em
en
t

Am
ou
nt
of
la
nd
co
ve
re
d
by

en
vi
ro
nm
en
t
st
ew
ar
ds
hi
p

sc
he
m
es

CS
21
:
La
nd
sc
ap
e

En
vi
ro
nm
en
ta
lS
te
w
ar
ds
hi
p
sc
he
m
es
co
ve
rin
g
9,
66
8
ha
(a
s
pe
r

N
E
da
ta
Ju
ly
20
14
)
-
sm
al
li
nc
re
as
e
on
20
13
fig
ur
e
of
9,
35
9h
a.

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

G
re
en
Sp
ac
es
St
ra
te
gy

To
be
se
t

Pr
op
or
tio
n
of
po
pu
la
tio
n
liv
in
g

w
ith
in
ea
sy
w
al
ki
ng
di
st
an
ce
of

gr
ee
n
sp
ac
es
m
ee
tin
g
de
fin
ed

qu
al
ity
st
an
da
rd
s

CS
22
:
G
re
en
Sp
ac
e

Cu
rr
en
tly
no
t
ab
le
to
m
ea
su
re
bu
t
is
in
cl
ud
ed
w
ith
in
th
e
G
re
en

Sp
ac
es
St
ra
te
gy
.M
ay
co
ns
id
er
re
pl
ac
in
g
w
ith
di
ffe
re
nt
m
ea
su
re

in
fu
tu
re
.

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

In
di
ca
to
r
to
be
de
ve
lo
pe
d

To
be
se
t

N
et
ga
in
s
/
lo
ss
es
in
gr
ee
n

sp
ac
e
pr
ov
is
io
n

CS
22
:
G
re
en
Sp
ac
e

N
o
da
ta
,s
ys
te
m
re
qu
ire
d
to
m
ea
su
re
to
be
pu
t
in
pl
ac
e

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

35Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 42



C
O
M
M
EN
TS

TA
R
G
ET
/
A
IM

IN
D
IC
A
TO
R

P
O
LI
C
Y
A
R
EA

En
gl
is
h
H
er
ita
ge

Re
du
ce
nu
m
be
r
of
de
si
gn
at
ed

as
se
ts
on
th
e
"H
er
ita
ge
at
Ri
sk

Re
gi
st
er
"

N
um
be
r
of
de
si
gn
at
ed

he
rit
ag
e
as
se
ts
on
th
e
En
gl
is
h

H
er
ita
ge
"H
er
ita
ge
at
Ri
sk

Re
gi
st
er
"

CS
23
:
Va
lu
in
g
th
e
hi
st
or
ic

en
vi
ro
nm
en
t

O
ft
he
16
G
ra
de
ia
nd
36
G
ra
de
ii*
lis
te
d
bu
ild
in
gs
in
Ro
th
er
ha
m

7
ha
ve
be
en
de
si
gn
at
ed
as
'a
t
ris
k'
by
En
gl
is
h
H
er
ita
ge
in
20
14

(in
cr
ea
se
of
1)
.

Fr
om

20
14
al
lh
er
ita
ge
as
se
ts
no
w
sh
ow
n
-9
Sc
he
du
le
d
An
ci
en
t

M
on
um
en
ts
(S
AM
s)
an
d
3
Co
ns
er
va
tio
n
Ar
ea
s
ar
e
al
so
de
em
ed

to
be
at
ris
k.

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

As
pe
r
En
gl
is
h
H
er
ita
ge

N
on
e
to
be
lo
st
to
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t

Li
st
ed
bu
ild
in
gs
an
d
An
ci
en
t

M
on
um
en
ts
lo
st
to

de
ve
lo
pm
en
t

CS
23
:
Va
lu
in
g
th
e
hi
st
or
ic

en
vi
ro
nm
en
t

To
ta
lo
f
51
9
in
20
14
.[
16
G
ra
de
i,
36
G
ra
de
ii*
an
d
46
7
G
ra
de

ii]
;
37
Sc
he
du
le
d
An
ci
en
t
M
on
um
en
ts
.O
ne
ad
di
tio
na
lG
ra
de
ii

fr
om

pr
ev
io
us
ye
ar
/
no
ne
lo
st
to
de
ve
lo
pm
en
t.

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

D
CL
G
Co
re
ou
tp
ut
in
di
ca
to
r

(s
ee
al
so
po
lic
y
CS
25
)
N
o

N
on
e
to
be
gr
an
te
d
ag
ai
ns
t

su
st
ai
ne
d
EA

ad
vi
ce

N
um
be
r
of
pl
an
ni
ng

ap
pl
ic
at
io
ns
gr
an
te
d
co
nt
ra
ry

CS
24
:
Co
ns
er
vi
ng
an
d

en
ha
nc
in
g
th
e
W
at
er

En
vi
ro
nm
en
t

ob
je
ct
io
ns
on
w
at
er
qu
al
ity

to
ad
vi
ce
of
th
e
En
vi
ro
nm
en
t

re
ce
iv
ed
.7
in
iti
al
ob
je
ct
io
ns
on

Ag
en
cy
on
flo
od
de
fe
nc
e
or

w
at
er
qu
al
ity
gr
ou
nd
s

flo
od
ris
k
gr
ou
nd
s
-
1
re
fu
se
d,

2
no
t
ye
t
de
te
rm
in
ed
,4

re
vi
se
d/
ap
pr
ov
ed
SF
RA

re
ce
iv
ed
be
fo
re
gr
an
tin
g.

N
on
e
gr
an
te
d
ag
ai
ns
t
su
st
ai
ne
d
EA

ad
vi
ce
in
20
13
/1
4.

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

Annual Monitoring Report 201436

6
Page 43



C
O
M
M
EN
TS

TA
R
G
ET
/
A
IM

IN
D
IC
A
TO
R

P
O
LI
C
Y
A
R
EA

En
vi
ro
nm
en
t
Ag
en
cy

Ye
ar
ly
im
pr
ov
em
en
t
in
th
e

pe
rc
en
ta
ge
of
riv
er
le
ng
th
of

'g
oo
d'
ec
ol
og
y
st
at
us

Pe
rc
en
ta
ge
of
riv
er
le
ng
th
in

Ro
th
er
ha
m
as
se
ss
ed
as
be
in
g

of
go
od
qu
al
ity

CS
24
:
Co
ns
er
vi
ng
an
d

en
ha
nc
in
g
th
e
W
at
er

En
vi
ro
nm
en
t

N
ew

ba
se
lin
e
-2
00
9
fo
rt
he
W
at
er
Fr
am
ew
or
k
D
ire
ct
iv
e
=
4.
68
%

as
ad
vi
se
d
by
En
vi
ro
nm
en
t
Ag
en
cy
.(
20
15
w
ill
be
ne
xt
up
da
te
)

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

D
CL
G
Co
re
ou
tp
ut
in
di
ca
to
r

(s
ee
al
so
po
lic
y
CS
24
)

N
on
e
to
be
gr
an
te
d
ag
ai
ns
t

su
st
ai
ne
d
EA

ad
vi
ce

N
um
be
r
of
pl
an
ni
ng

ap
pl
ic
at
io
ns
gr
an
te
d
co
nt
ra
ry

to
ad
vi
ce
of
th
e
En
vi
ro
nm
en
t

Ag
en
cy
on
flo
od
de
fe
nc
e
or

w
at
er
qu
al
ity
gr
ou
nd
s

CS
25
:
D
ea
lin
g
w
ith
Fl
oo
d
Ri
sk

Pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
on
th
is
in
di
ca
to
r
sh
ow
n
un
de
r
Po
lic
y
CS
24

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

D
CL
G
Co
re
ou
tp
ut
in
di
ca
to
r

M
ai
nt
ai
n
a
su
pp
ly
of
ag
gr
eg
at
e

m
in
er
al
s
to
co
nt
rib
ut
e
to
th
e

re
gi
on
al
an
d
su
b-
re
gi
on
al

de
m
an
d

Pr
od
uc
tio
n
pf
pr
im
ar
y
an
d

se
co
nd
ar
y
/
re
cy
cl
ed

ag
gr
eg
at
es

CS
26
:
M
in
er
al
s

N
ot
av
ai
la
bl
e
fo
r
Ro
th
er
ha
m
al
on
e
-
Co
m
m
er
ci
al
ly
co
nf
id
en
tia
l

da
ta

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

37Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 44



P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
K
ey
:

Im
pr
ov
in
g
/
O
n
Ta
rg
et
=

D
ec
lin
in
g
/
N
ot
on
Ta
rg
et
=

N
o
C
h
an
ge
/
N
o
U
pd
at
e
=

Ta
bl
e
F
:
C
re
at
in
g
Sa
fe
an
d
Su
st
ai
n
ab
le
C
om
m
u
n
it
ie
s

C
O
M
M
EN
TS

TA
R
G
ET
/
A
IM

IN
D
IC
A
TO
R

P
O
LI
C
Y
A
R
EA

As
re
po
rt
ed
in
Co
rp
or
at
e
Pl
an

-
fig
ur
e
in
m
ic
ro
gr
am
s
pe
r
m
3

fo
r
20
10
w
ill
be
us
ed
as
th
e

ba
se
lin
e
fig
ur
e
(3
4)

Re
du
ce
em
is
si
on
s
-
ni
tr
og
en

di
ox
id
e
an
nu
al
m
ea
n.

Ai
rQ
ua
lit
y
-
ha
rm
fu
le
m
is
si
on
s

m
ea
su
re
d
in
th
e
Ai
r
Q
ua
lit
y

M
an
ag
em
en
t
Ar
ea
s
(A
Q
M
As
)

CS
27
:
Co
m
m
un
ity
H
ea
lth
&

Sa
fe
ty

4
AQ
M
A'
s
in
Ro
th
er
ha
m
.B
as
ed
on
an
nu
al
av
er
ag
e
(m
ea
n)
of

Ro
th
er
ha
m
s
au
to
m
at
ic
m
on
ito
rin
g
si
te
s
in
20
13
=
34
m
ic
ro
gr
am
s

pe
r
m
3.
N
o
ch
an
ge
fr
om

20
10
ba
se
lin
e
or
20
12
fig
ur
e.

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

Pe
rf
or
m
an
ce
sh
ow
n
in
CS
30

Re
du
ct
io
n
in
CO
2
em
is
si
on
s

pe
r
he
ad
-
se
e
Po
lic
y
CS
30

CO
2
em
is
si
on
s

CS
27
:
Co
m
m
un
ity
H
ea
lth
&

Sa
fe
ty

Se
e
Re
ne
w
ab
le
En
er
gy
Po
lic
y
CS
30

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

Se
e
al
so
Po
lic
y
CS
7
H
ou
si
ng

M
ix
an
d
Af
fo
rd
ab
ili
ty

Av
oi
d
de
ve
lo
pm
en
to
fl
es
s
th
an

30
dp
h

D
en
si
ty
of
co
m
pl
et
ed
dw
el
lin
gs

-
%
co
m
pl
et
ed
at
<
30
,3
0
to

50
,>
50
dw
el
lin
gs
pe
r
he
ct
ar
e

CS
28
:
Su
st
ai
na
bl
e
D
es
ig
n

20
13
/1
4
:
<
30
=
33
.5
%
,3
0
to
50
=
60
.5
%
,>
50
=
6.
0%

(n
um
be
r/
pe
rc
en
ta
ge
bu
ilt
at
<
30
dp
h
hi
gh
er
th
an
pr
ev
io
us
ye
ar
)

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

D
CL
G
Co
re
ou
tp
ut
in
di
ca
to
r
-

As
se
ss
m
en
t
of
ne
w

de
ve
lo
pm
en
ts
ag
ai
ns
t
th
e

st
an
da
rd
s

In
cr
ea
se
pr
op
or
tio
n
of
ne
w

bu
ild
s
re
ac
hi
ng
st
an
da
rd
s

ag
ai
ns
t
th
e
Bu
ild
in
g
fo
r
Li
fe

Cr
ite
ria

H
ou
si
ng
Q
ua
lit
y
-
Bu
ild
in
g
fo
r

Li
fe
as
se
ss
m
en
ts

CS
28
:
Su
st
ai
na
bl
e
D
es
ig
n

Annual Monitoring Report 201438

6
Page 45



C
O
M
M
EN
TS

TA
R
G
ET
/
A
IM

IN
D
IC
A
TO
R

P
O
LI
C
Y
A
R
EA

BF
L2
0
no
w
di
sc
on
tin
ue
d.
BF
L1
2
tr
af
fic
lig
ht
sy
st
em

in
tr
od
uc
ed

pu
re
ly
fo
r
pr
e-
ap
p
di
sc
us
si
on
s
(u
na
bl
e
to
m
on
ito
r
ac
tu
al

ap
pl
ic
at
io
ns
).

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

As
se
ss
m
en
t
of
ne
w

de
ve
lo
pm
en
ts
ag
ai
ns
t
th
e

st
an
da
rd
s

In
cr
ea
se
th
e
nu
m
be
r
of

de
ve
lo
pm
en
ts
th
at
m
ee
t
th
e

st
an
da
rd

Pe
rc
en
ta
ge
of
no
n
re
si
de
nt
ia
l

flo
or
sp
ac
e
(s
ch
em
es
in
cl
ud
in
g

at
le
as
t
50
0m
2
flo
or
sp
ac
e)

gr
an
te
d
pl
an
ni
ng
pe
rm
is
si
on

th
at
ac
hi
ev
es
or
ex
ce
ed
s
th
e

re
qu
ire
d
le
ve
ls
ag
ai
ns
t

BR
EE
AM
.

CS
28
:
Su
st
ai
na
bl
e
D
es
ig
n

Sc
he
m
es
no
t
as
se
ss
ed
/
no
t
en
fo
rc
ed
.C
on
si
de
r
re
m
ov
in
g
/

re
pl
ac
in
g
th
is
in
di
ca
to
r
in
fu
tu
re
re
po
rt
s.

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

M
on
ito
rin
g
in
di
ca
to
r(
s)
to
be
de
te
rm
in
ed

CS
29
:
Co
m
m
un
ity
an
d
So
ci
al

Fa
ci
lit
ie
s

D
CL
G
Co
re
ou
tp
ut
in
di
ca
to
r

In
cr
ea
se
re
ne
w
ab
le
en
er
gy

ge
ne
ra
tio
n
ye
ar
on
ye
ar
in
th
e

bo
ro
ug
h
(3
6M
w
by
20
21
).

Re
ne
w
ab
le
en
er
gy
ge
ne
ra
tio
n

in
th
e
ye
ar

CS
30
:
Lo
w
Ca
rb
on
an
d

Re
ne
w
ab
le
En
er
gy
G
en
er
at
io
n

La
rg
e
sc
al
e:
29
M
w
al
re
ad
y
gr
an
te
d
(n
ot
al
li
n
op
er
at
io
n
bu
tw
el
l

on
ta
rg
et
)
+
ne
w
Bi
om
as
s
pl
an
t
at
Fi
rt
h
Ri
xs
on
w
or
ks

Te
m
pl
eb
or
ou
gh
ap
pr
ov
ed
@
20
M
w
+
H
yd
ro
at
Th
ry
be
rg
h
Lo
ck
,

Ki
ln
hu
rs
t
fo
r
23
0k
w

Sm
al
ls
ca
le
:
11
,8
82
kw

ph
ot
ov
ol
ta
ic
(s
ol
ar
)
in
st
al
le
d
ac
ro
ss
th
e

bo
ro
ug
h
in
pe
rio
d
Ap
r
20
10
to
Ju
ne
20
14
[S
ou
rc
e:
D
EC
C]

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

Pr
ev
io
us
ly
N
I1
86
CO
2

em
is
si
on
s
w
ith
in
th
e
sc
op
e
of

in
flu
en
ce
of
lo
ca
la
ut
ho
rit
ie
s.

Re
du
ce
ov
er
al
lC
O
2
em
is
si
on
s

pe
r
he
ad

Ca
rb
on
D
io
xi
de
(C
O
2)

em
is
si
on
s
pe
r
ca
pi
ta

CS
30
:
Lo
w
Ca
rb
on

an
d

Re
ne
w
ab
le
En
er
gy
G
en
er
at
io
n

20
12
da
ta

=
1,
59
4.
2
kt
CO
2,
6.
2
to
nn
es
pe
r
ca
pi
ta
(u
p
fr
om

6.
0
in
20
11
)

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

39Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 46



C
O
M
M
EN
TS

TA
R
G
ET
/
A
IM

IN
D
IC
A
TO
R

P
O
LI
C
Y
A
R
EA

M
on
ito
rin
g
in
di
ca
to
r(
s)
to
be
de
te
rm
in
ed

CS
31
:
M
ix
ed
U
se
Ar
ea
s

D
CL
G
Co
re
ou
tp
ut
in
di
ca
to
r

In
cr
ea
se
re
co
ve
ry
ca
pa
ci
ty
in

lin
e
w
ith
bo
ro
ug
h
ne
ed
s

Ca
pa
ci
ty
of
ne
w
w
as
te

m
an
ag
em
en
t
fa
ci
lit
ie
s
in
th
e

bo
ro
ug
h

W
as
te
M
an
ag
em
en
t
-
Po
lic
ie
s

in
th
e
jo
in
t
w
as
te
D
PD

fo
r

Ro
th
er
ha
m
,B
ar
ns
le
y
&

D
on
ca
st
er

Jo
in
t
w
as
te
D
PD

no
w
ad
op
te
d
an
d
ap
pl
ic
at
io
n
fo
r
ne
w
w
as
te

m
an
ag
em
en
tf
ac
ili
tie
s
ap
pr
ov
ed
.(
co
ns
tr
uc
tio
n
st
ar
te
d
/
ne
ar
in
g

co
m
pl
et
io
n)
.

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

D
CL
G
Co
re
ou
tp
ut
in
di
ca
to
r

(h
ou
se
ho
ld
w
as
te
fo
rm
er

N
I1
92
,m
un
ic
ip
al
w
as
te
fo
rm
er

N
I1
93
).
W
as
te
to
la
nd
fil
lh
as

in
cr
ea
se
d
ov
er
th
e
ye
ar
.

Re
du
ce
la
nd
fil
la
nd
re
du
ce
to
ta
l

m
un
ic
ip
al
w
as
te

Am
ou
nt
of
w
as
te
ar
is
in
g
an
d

m
an
ag
ed
by
ty
pe

W
as
te
M
an
ag
em
en
t

Pe
rc
en
ta
ge
of
h
ou
se
h
ol
d
w
as
te
se
nt
fo
r
re
us
e,
re
cy
cl
in
g
or

co
m
po
st
in
g
in
20
13
/1
4
=
39
.3
5%

[
41
.4
8%

in
20
12
/1
3]

(f
ur
th
er
19
.8
1%

us
ed
to
re
co
ve
r
he
at
,p
ow
er
&
ot
he
r
en
er
gy

so
ur
ce
s;
40
.8
5%

se
nt
to
la
nd
fil
l)

Pe
rc
en
ta
ge
of
m
u
n
ic
ip
al
w
as
te
se
nt
to
la
nd
fil
l=

39
.0
2%

.

C
u
rr
en
t
P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
:

Annual Monitoring Report 201440

6
Page 47



P
er
fo
rm
an
ce
K
ey
:

Im
pr
ov
in
g
/
O
n
Ta
rg
et
=

D
ec
lin
in
g
/
N
ot
on
Ta
rg
et
=

N
o
C
h
an
ge
/
N
o
U
pd
at
e
=

Ta
bl
e
F:
In
fr
as
tr
u
ct
u
re
an
d
Im
pl
em
en
ta
ti
on

C
O
M
M
EN
TS

TA
R
G
ET
/
A
IM

IN
D
IC
A
TO
R

P
O
LI
C
Y
A
R
EA

An
y
m
on
ito
rin
g
in
di
ca
to
r(
s)
to
be
de
ci
de
d
as
pa
rt
of
In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
D
el
iv
er
y
Pl
an

CS
32
:
In
fr
as
tr
uc
tu
re
D
el
iv
er
y

an
d
D
ev
el
op
er
Co
nt
rib
ut
io
ns

M
on
ito
rin
g
in
di
ca
to
r(
s)
to
be
de
te
rm
in
ed

CS
33
:
Pr
es
um
pt
io
n
in
Fa
vo
ur

of
Su
st
ai
na
bl
e
D
ev
el
op
m
en
t

Th
e
Co
un
ci
lh
as
co
m
m
itt
ed
to
co
-o
pe
ra
te
w
ith
ne
ig
hb
ou
rin
g
lo
ca
la
ut
ho
rit
ie
s,
es
pe
ci
al
ly
Sh
ef
fie
ld

Ci
ty
Co
un
ci
l,
to
pr
od
uc
e
jo
in
tly
a
St
ra
te
gi
c
H
ou
si
ng
M
ar
ke
t
As
se
ss
m
en
t
(S
H
M
A)
fo
r
th
e
en
tir
e

ho
us
in
g
m
ar
ke
t
ar
ea
,t
o
be
co
m
pl
et
ed
in
D
ec
em
be
r
20
14
:
an
d
un
de
rt
ak
e
an
im
m
ed
ia
te
re
vi
ew

of
th
e
Co
re
St
ra
te
gy
sh
ou
ld
th
e
up
da
te
d
St
ra
te
gi
c
H
ou
si
ng
M
ar
ke
t
As
se
ss
m
en
t
de
m
on
st
ra
te
a

ne
ed
fo
r
ad
di
tio
na
lh
ou
si
ng
pr
ov
is
io
n
to
th
at
pr
ov
id
ed
fo
r
in
Po
lic
y
CS
6.

U
pd
at
e:
W
or
k
ha
s
st
ar
te
d
w
ith
Sh
ef
fie
ld
Ci
ty
Co
un
ci
lo
n
th
e
pr
od
uc
tio
n
of
a
jo
in
t
SH
M
A
w
ith
a

ta
rg
et
co
m
pl
et
io
n
da
te
of
D
ec
em
be
r
20
14

CS
34
:
H
ou
si
ng
D
el
iv
er
y
an
d

O
n-
go
in
g
Co
-o
pe
ra
tio
n

41Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 48



1 Indicative Local Development Scheme timetable

1.1 The Local Development Scheme sets out a programme for preparing the documents that will
make up the Local Plan and was last updated and approved in September 2014. For the latest position
please refer to our web page: www.rotherham.gov.uk/localplan

Annual Monitoring Report 201442

1
Page 49

http://www.rotherham.gov.uk/localplan


2 Glossary

Accessibility: The ability of people to move around areas and reach places and facilities.

(The) Act: The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Affordable housing: Housing accessible to households who cannot afford open market rental or
purchase. It includes a range of tenures, i.e. shared ownership, discounted market housing, key
worker housing, subsidised social renting etc.

Aggregates - the mineral materials, such as sand or stone, used in making concrete.

Air Quality Management Area (AQMA): Air Quality Management Areas have to be declared by
Local Authorities for any parts of their areas where the air quality is unlikely to meet Government
objectives as set out in the Environment Act 1995, and where people are expected to be exposed to
the poor air quality.

Allocations - Sites to meet future development

Annual Monitoring Report (AMR): Part of the Local Plan, the annual monitoring report will assess
the implementation of the local development scheme and the extent to which policies in local
development documents are being successfully implemented.

Area Action Plan: A type of Development Plan Document focused upon a specific location or an
area subject to conservation or significant change (for example, major regeneration).

Area of High Landscape Value: A local landscape designation used to identify land of particularly
high landscape quality.

Biodiversity: The whole variety of life on earth; all species of plants and animals and the ecosystems
of which they are part.

Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP): A plan which sets out proposals to protect and improve the places
where trees, plants, animals and insects live.

Biomass: Plants and trees when used to create energy.

Broad locations for growth: Indicative areas of major development.

Brownfield (previously developed) land: Land that is or was occupied by a permanent structure.

Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment Method (BREEAM): This is
a tool to measure the sustainability of non-domestic buildings.

Bulky goods: Retail categories that include furniture, white goods, electrical equipment, bedding,
lighting, automotive parts, camping and outdoor equipment, tools, building materials and DIY and
homemaker products.

43Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 50



Carbon emissions: Gases, such as carbon dioxide, caused by burning fossil fuels in transport and
energy generation which contribute to global warming and climate change.

Chain of Conformity: It is important that we make sure the inter-relationships between different
Local Plan documents are clear and that the Local Plan as a whole is consistent with national policy.
This consistency is commonly referred to as the ‘chain of conformity’.

Code for Sustainable Homes: Provides a set of national standards for the design and construction
of new homes to reduce carbon emissions.

Combined heat and power: The use of a heat engine or a power station to simultaneously generate
both electricity and useful heat.

Community Infrastructure Levy: A form of planning gain tax, where a proportion of the increase
in value on land as a result of planning permission is used to finance the supporting infrastructure,
such as schools and will 'unlock housing growth'

Community Strategy: Local authorities are required by the Local Government and Public Involvement
in Health Act 2007 to prepare these, with aim of improving the social, environmental and economic
well being of their areas. Through the Community Strategy, authorities are expected to co-ordinate
the actions of local public, private, voluntary and community sectors. Responsibility for producing
Community Strategies may be passed to Local Strategic Partnerships, which include local authority
representatives.

Comparison goods: These can be described as goods that consumers buy at infrequent intervals
and normally would compare prices before buying eg. TV, fridges, clothes etc.

Conservation Area: An area, usually part of a settlement, designated by a local planning authority
for preservation or enhancement because of its special architectural or historic interest under the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act, 1990.

Contextual indicators: Measure changes in the wider social, economic, and environmental
background against which policies operate. They help to relate policy outputs to the local area.

Convenience goods: A consumer item that is widely-available, purchased frequently and with
minimal effort. Examples of convenience goods include newspapers and sweets.

Core Strategy: Sets out the long-term spatial vision for the local planning authority area, the spatial
objectives and strategic policies to deliver that vision. The core strategy will have the status of a
development plan document.

Density: The number of buildings in a given area. In the Local Plan it is used mainly in relation to
housing, being expressed as dwellings per hectare or ‘dph’.

Department for Communities & Local Government (DLCG): Established in 2006 as the successor
to the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister, DCLG is the Government department for communities
and local government and has policy responsibility for (amongst others) planning, urban regeneration
and building regulations.

Annual Monitoring Report 201444

2
Page 51



Department for Environment Food & Rural Affairs (Defra): The government department
responsible for environmental protection, food production and standards, agriculture, fisheries and
rural communities.

Designations: Areas of land where specific policies apply.

Development Plan: As set out in Section 38 of the Act, an authority’s development plan consists
of the relevant regional spatial strategy (for Yorkshire and the Humber Region) and the development
plan documents contained within its local development framework. It sets out the local planning
authority’s policies and proposals for the development and use of land and buildings in the authority’s
area.

Development Plan Documents (DPD): Spatial planning documents that undergo independent
examination. They can include a core strategy, site specific allocations of land, generic development
control policies, and area action plans (where needed). Proposals will all be shown on a proposals
map for the Borough. Individual development plan documents or parts of a document can be reviewed
independently from other development plan documents. Each authority must set out the programme
for preparing its development plan documents in the local development scheme. A development plan
document within the Local Plan is used to make decisions on proposals for development.

Ecosystem: A biological environment consisting of all the organisms living in a particular area, as
well as all the physical components of the environment with which the organisms interact, such as
air, soil, water and sunlight.

Energy crops: Energy crops are a carbon neutral energy source and when substituted for fossil
fuels can help reduce greenhouse gas emissions and contribute to renewable energy generation.
An examples of an energy crop is short rotation coppice (e.g. willow and poplar), which is densely
planted and then harvested on a 2-5 year cycle.

Equality impact assessment: A process designed to ensure that a policy, project or scheme does
not discriminate against any disadvantaged or vulnerable people.

European Landscape Convention: This promotes the protection, management and planning of
European landscapes and organises European co-operation on landscape issues.

Evidence base: Information gathered by a planning authority to support preparation of local
development documents. It includes quantitative and qualitative data.

Front loading: Front loading encourages more active involvement of communities, stakeholders
and commercial interests earlier in the Local Plan process than under the previous planning system.
The aim is to seek agreement on essential issues early in the process. Where agreement is difficult
to achieve, front loading allows the maximum opportunity for participants to understand each others’
positions and to negotiate a way forward.

Flood alleviation: The avoidance of the possibility of flooding by controlling the flow of water in
rivers.

Flood and Water Management Act 2010: The Act aims to improve both flood risk management
and the way we manage our water resources.

45Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 52



Geodiversity: The variety of rocks, fossils, minerals, landforms and soils, and all the natural processes
that shape the landscape.

Green Belt: An area of open land where strict planning controls apply in order to check the further
growth of a large built-up area, prevent neighbouring towns from merging or to preserve the special
character of a town.

Greenfield: Land (or a defined site) that has not previously been developed. (Not to be confused
with Green Belt.)

Greenhouse gas: components of the atmosphere that contribute to the greenhouse effect (the
process by which an atmosphere warms a planet).

Greenspace: Breaks in the urban environment formed by open areas such as parks, playing fields,
woodlands and landscaped areas. These spaces may exist as definable linear routeways, forming
part of a network linking urban areas to the surrounding countryside.

Green infrastructure: The network of multi-functional green space, both new and existing, both
rural and urban, which supports the natural and ecological processes and is integral to the health
and quality of life of sustainable communities.

Gross Value Added (GVA): This measures the contribution to the economy of each individual
producer, industry or sector - the value of outputs (goods or services) less the value of inputs (labour
& materials) used.

Habitats and Species of Principle Importance for Biodiversity: The habitats and species in
England that have been identified via the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 as
requiring action in the England Biodiversity Action Plan and which Local Authorities have a duty to
protect and enhance.

Hazardous installations: Installations that use, manufacture or store significant quantities of
hazardous substances that have the potential to cause serious harm to people on and surrounding
the site.

Health impact assessment: The process by which a policy, program or project may be judged as
to its potential effects on the health of a population, and the distribution of those effects within the
population.

Hectare: A metric unit of measurement equivalent to 100 metres x 100 metres or 2.47 acres (i.e.
approximately one and a half football fields).

Housing Market Renewal (HMR): There are some areas of the borough where houses are
unpopular, sometimes because of the design of the houses or the housing estate. This can result in
houses becoming so unpopular that no-one wants to live in them. This is known as housing-market
failure. Housing-market renewal is when we or the Government takes action to solve this problem.
This can involve refurbishing existing houses, replacing existing houses with new ones or improving
the local environment to make it more attractive to live in.

Annual Monitoring Report 201446

2
Page 53



Housing trajectory: A means of showing past and future housing performance by identifying the
predicted provision of housing over the lifespan of the Local Plan.

Independent Examination: An independent process where formal objections to a DPD made at
Submission stage are considered by a government inspector. The Examination itself will be run by a
government inspector. Many objections to DPDs will be considered through written comments made
by the objector and the council. However, objectors have a right to make their case in person at the
Examination if they choose.

Infill: Housing development that goes in the gaps between existing buildings.

Infrastructure: Physical services including water, gas, electricity, telecommunications supply and
sewerage. It can also refer to community facilities, for example, schools, shops and public transport.

Infrastructure Delivery Plan: This will help direct growth to the most appropriate locations, and
ensure that the different economic, social and environmental infrastructure needs of the borough’s
residents and businesses are met.

Inspector’s Report: A report produced by the inspector (from the Planning Inspectorate) following
the Independent Examination. This sets out the inspector’s conclusions on the issues considered at
the Examination. The report will recommend to us if the DPD needs to be changed as a result and
in what way.

Issues and Options: Produced during the early stage in the preparation of development plan
documents.

Key Diagram: The diagrammatic interpretation of the spatial strategy, as set out in a local authority’s
core strategy.

Landscape Character Area: A unique geographic area with a consistent character and identity,
defined by geology, landform, soils, vegetation, land use, settlement and field pattern

Landscape Character Assessment: A way of assessing the appearance and essential characteristics
of a landscape in terms of particular combinations of geology, landform, soils, vegetation, land use
and human settlement.

Listed Building: A building that has been placed on the Statutory List of Buildings of Special
Architectural or Historic Interest.

Local Development Document (LDD): The collective term in the Act for development plan
documents, supplementary planning documents and the statement of community involvement.

Local Development Framework (LDF): The name for the portfolio of local development documents
and related documents. It consists of development plan documents, supplementary planning
documents, a statement of community involvement, the local development scheme and annual
monitoring reports. It may also include local development orders and simplified planning zone schemes.
Together all these documents will provide the framework for delivering the spatial planning strategy
for a local authority area. Now called the Local Plan.

47Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 54



Local Development Scheme (LDS): Sets out the programme for preparing local development
documents.

Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP): The LEP is based on a relationship between the public and
private sector and a strong commitment to work together to ensure the growth of a rebalanced local
economy. The LEP will be led by the private sector and will contribute significantly to the renewal
of the national economy as a whole.

Local Nature Reserve (LNR): A statutory designation made under Section 21 of the National Parks
and Access to the Countryside Act 1949, and amended by Schedule 11 of the Natural Environment
and Rural Communities Act 2006.

Local Service Centre: Where there are opportunities for sustainable development these will be
pursued, but the settlement and growth strategy is mindful that the social infrastructure in these
communities is more limited.

Local Plan: See Local Development Framework.

Local Sites: Including Local Wildlife Sites (LWS) and Regionally Important Geological Sites (RIGS).
Non-statutory areas of local importance for nature conservation that complement nationally and
internationally designated geological and wildlife sites. Local Sites are protected within the planning
framework.

Local Strategic Partnership (LSP): Representatives from the public, voluntary, community and
business sectors brought together with the objective of improving people’s quality of life.

Localism Bill: A proposed act of Parliament (2010-11) to change the powers of local government
in England.

Microgeneration: The production of heat and/or electricity on a small scale from a low carbon
source, e.g. solar panels.

Monitoring: Regular and systematic collection and analysis of information to measure policy
implementation.

National Character Areas: Describes how England has been divided up into areas with similar
landscape character.

Non-bulky goods: Includes items such as clothes and footwear.

Non-potable water: Water that is not of drinking quality, but which may still be used for many
other purposes.

Outcomes: Macro-level (global, national and regional), real world changes which are influenced to
some degree by the Local Plan.

Output indicators: Measure the direct effect of a policy. Used to assess whether policy targets are
being achieved in reality using available information.

Annual Monitoring Report 201448

2
Page 55



Outputs: The direct effects of a policy, e.g. number of houses built, amount of employment floorspace
developed, etc.

Plan, Monitor and Manage (PMM): Means of measuring and reviewing policy, involving the
adjustment of policy through monitoring if necessary.

Planning Act 2008: This legislation was intended to speed up the process for approving major new
infrastructure projects such as airports, roads, harbours, energy facilities such as nuclear power and
waste facilities. The Localism Bill (2010-11) will make changes to the regime under the Planning Act.

Planning gain: The benefits and safeguards, often for community benefit, secured by way of a
planning obligation as part of a planning approval and usually provided at the developer’s expense,
e.g. affordable housing, community facilities or mitigation measures.

Planning Inspectorate: A government organisation which makes recommendations about the
policies and proposals in DPDs through a formal Independent Examination. The inspectorate is a
neutral organisation which arbitrates where people and organisations do not agree with the Council.
They also check whether our proposals are in line with relevant government policy.

Planning obligations and agreements: A legal agreement between the Council and a developer
which is needed before a development can go ahead. It will usually deal with things that need to
happen away from the development site, including improvements to roads and open spaces.

Planning Policy Statement (PPS)/Planning Policy Guidance (PPG): National statements of
planning policy prepared by the Government and which councils are expected to take into account
when preparing Local Plans.

Policy implementation: Assessment of the effectiveness of policies in terms of achieving their
targets. Measured by use of output and contextual indicators.

Policy directions: These pulled together broad issues that were taken into account in preparing
the final policies for the Core Strategy.

Preferred Options document: Produced as part of the preparation of development plan documents
for formal public participation..

Principal Settlement: Where there is a full range of social and community infrastructure to meet
current needs but the opportunities for growth are limited.

Principal Settlement for Growth: Where new social infrastructure and community services exist,
or are able to be provided as part of a major development scheme to support new growth opportunities

Proposals Map: A plan which shows policies and proposals for specific sites and locations. These
are shown on an Ordnance Survey map.

Recycling: The reprocessing of waste either into the same product or a different one.

Regional Development Agency (RDA): Government-funded organisations in England that aim
to ‘spread economic prosperity and opportunity’. This mission is delivered through a number of

49Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 56



initiatives, including events, advice services and funding. The RDA's are being replaced by Local
Enterprise Partnerships.

Regional Econometric Model (REM): The Regional Econometric Model is an economic database
and model used within the Yorkshire & Humber region to provide historic and projected labour market
information on employment, output, and productivity.

Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS): Sets out the region’s policies in relation to the development
and use of land and forms part of the development plan. Prepared by the Regional Planning Body.
Planning Policy Statement 11, ‘Regional Spatial Strategies’ provides detailed guidance on the function
and preparation of regional spatial strategies. On 6 July 2010, the Government announced the
revocation of the Regional Spatial Strategy, with the intention to abolish it completely through the
Localism Bill. At that point, the RSS will legally cease to be part of the Development Plan.

Register of Historic Parks & Gardens: The register aims to 'celebrate designed landscapes of
note, and encourage appropriate protection', so safeguarding the features and qualities of key
landscapes for the future. Each park or garden included is of special historic interest.

(The) Regulations: Legal documents prepared by the Government. They provide detailed information
about how acts should be applied, i.e. The Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England)
Regulations 2004, and the Town and Country Planning (Transitional Arrangements) (England)
Regulations 2004.

Renewable energy: Energy obtained from naturally occurring sources that are essentially
inexhaustible, unlike, for example, the fossil fuels, of which there is a finite supply. Renewable sources
of energy include wood, wind and solar thermal energy.

Rotherham Renaissance: A project aimed at creating a vibrant Rotherham town centre which
includes proposals for apartments, shops, outdoor cafés, and enhanced public spaces.

Safeguarded land: This is land which is set aside in case it is needed for development in the long
term. It is not available for development in the short term because it is not needed. The need to
develop safeguarded land will be considered when the Local Plan is reviewed.

Saved policies or plans: Existing adopted development plans are saved for a time period agreed
with Government. The local development scheme should explain the authority’s approach to saved
policies.

Scheduled Ancient Monument: This is a 'nationally important' archaeological site or historic
building, given protection against unauthorised change.

Sequential approach: Considering options for sites for development in a particular order. For
example, in terms of new shops, we would first look for sites within a shopping centre and then for
sites on the edge of the shopping centre before looking at sites outside the centre. The same approach
is applied to finding land for housing.

Settlement hierarchy: A way in which towns, villages and hamlets are categorised depending on
their size and role. It can help make decisions about the amount and location of new development.

Annual Monitoring Report 201450

2
Page 57



Sheffield City Region: This covers an area spanned by local authorities within South Yorkshire
and the northern part of the East Midlands region. Over recent years, the Sheffield City Region
Forum has overseen work in the City Region to increase the pace of economic growth through
collaboration. Following Government's invitation to come forward with proposals to establish a Local
Enterprise Partnership (LEP), a LEP was set up and the Forum stood down in 2010.

Significant effects: Effects which are significant in the context of the plan. (Annex II of the SEA
Directive [see later definition] gives criteria for determining the likely environmental significance of
effects).

Significant effects indicators: An indicator that measures the significant effects of the plan or
programme.

Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI): Representative examples of nationally important wildlife
and geology. SSSI are notified by Natural England under section 28 of the Wildlife and Countryside
Act 1981 as being of special value for nature conservation and are legally protected under the Wildlife
and Countryside Act, as amended by the Countryside and Rights of Way (CROW) Act 2000 and the
Natural Environment and Rural Communities (NERC) Act 2006.

Sites & Policies Development Plan Document: This will show specific development sites and
contain policies to guide the release of land and design of new development.

Social inclusion: Making sure that everyone has access to services and opportunities no matter
what their background or income.

Soundness: At the Independent Examination, the inspector must assess whether the DPD is ‘sound’.
This includes assessing whether the DPD has been prepared in the right way using the right procedures
and if it is broadly in line with national planning guidance.

South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive (SYPTE): Responsible for the various public
transport services in the sub-region.

Spatial planning: Goes beyond traditional land use planning to bring together and integrate policies
for the development and use of land with other policies and programmes that influence the nature
of places and how they function. Spatial planning includes policies that can impact on land use, for
example by influencing the demands on, or needs for, development, but that are not capable of being
delivered solely or mainly through the granting or refusal of planning permission.

Spatial planning zone: These are defined by considering various characteristics including housing
markets and travel to work factors.

Statement of Community Involvement (SCI): Sets out the standards that authorities will work
to by involving local communities in the preparation of local development documents and development
control decisions.

Strategic Environmental Assessment (SEA): This term is used internationally to describe the
environmental assessment of plans, policies and programmes. This environmental assessment (the
SEA Directive) looks at the effects of certain plans and programmes on the environment.

51Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 58



Strategic Flood Risk Assessment: These are a required part of the planning process and are
intended to form the basis for preparing appropriate policies for flood risk management at the local
level.

Strategic Housing LandAvailability Assessment: This provides information on the opportunities
that exist to meet housing need within a specified area over the Local Plan period. The information
from the assessment will inform the Local Plan but will not actually allocate land for housing.

Strategic Housing Market Assessment: Housing Market Assessments establish the level of need
and demand for housing examining issues such as the particular accommodation requirements of
specific groups, for example Gypsies and Travellers.

Strategic Road Network: This consists of motorways (such as the M1 & M18) and significant trunk
A roads (such as the A57).

Sub-region: The administrative areas of Rotherham, Barnsley, Doncaster and Sheffield.

Submission: This is the stage at which people and organisations have the legal right to make a
formal objection that will be considered by a government inspector. Submission also refers to the
point at which the DPD is formally sent to the Secretary of State – which happens at the start of the
submission consultation.

Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD): Provide supplementary information in respect of
the policies in development plan documents. They do not form part of the development plan and are
not subject to independent examination.

Surface Water Management Plan: A framework through which key local partners with a
responsibility for surface water and drainage in their area work together to understand the causes
of surface water flooding and agree the most cost effective way of managing that risk.

Sustainability Appraisal (SA): Describes the form of assessment that considers social,
environmental and economic effects of the proposed policy directions. It includes the requirements
of the SEA Directive, referred to above. This has to be produced at each main consultation stage
when preparing these documents.

Sustainable communities: A sustainable community is one in which most of the services and
facilities people need, including schools and shops, are easy to get to, preferably without the need
to use a car.

Sustainable development: Development that has an acceptable or positive effect on the economy,
the environment and social conditions, and which uses natural resources carefully. Development that
meets the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their
own needs. This concept offers the prospect of reconciling the pressures for growth with the need
for conservation.

Sustainable settlements: See Sustainable Communities.

Targets: These are thresholds used to identify the scale of change to be achieved by policies over
a specific time period (e.g. number of affordable homes to be built by a set date).

Annual Monitoring Report 201452

2
Page 59



Transport nodes: Areas where transport links are concentrated or cross each other, e.g. bus and
train stations, interchanges.

Tree Preservation Order: These are used to protect specific trees or a particular area, group or
woodland from deliberate damage and destruction.

Unitary Development Plan (UDP): A document which is used to make decisions on proposals for
development. The Rotherham UDP covers all the borough. Under the Act, the UDP will be replaced
by DPDs.

Urban cooling: Cooling and shading provided by green open spaces can help counter the tendency
of buildings, structures and hard surfacing to retain heat in urban areas as temperatures increase
with climate change.

Urban Extensions: Significant development sites which have the potential to yield more than 500
dwellings.

Urban Potential Study (UPS): Studies undertaken to establish how much additional housing can
be accommodated within urban areas.

Waste hierarchy: The principle that there are different levels of dealing with waste, ranging from
the higher (more sustainable) levels such as reducing waste, re-using then recycling or composting,
to the lower (less sustainable) levels such as burning and finally to landfill.

Wildlife corridor: An area, usually linear, of undeveloped land that links two or more sites or areas
of natural or semi-natural habitat providing a safe route for movement of wildlife.

Windfalls: Sites for new housing that are not identified when allocating land in a development plan
document but that may come forward for development during the Plan period. For example, the
redevelopment of former industrial premises following unanticipated closure or relocation of a business.

Yorkshire and Humber Plan: See Regional Spatial Strategy

Yorkshire Forward: See Regional Development Agency

53Annual Monitoring Report 2014

Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Document is Restricted

Page 63 Agenda Item 6
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 66 Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 69
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	4 Local Plan - Annual Monitoring Report 2014
	Local Plan AMR2014 A
	Foreword
	1 Introduction
	2 The Local Development Scheme
	3 Developing a monitoring framework
	4 Housing trajectory
	5 Summary of findings
	6 Tables of indicators
	1 Indicative Local Development Scheme timetable
	2 Glossary


	6 Council Housing - Damp-proofing works
	7 District Heating - upgrading of pipework and installation of new radiators
	District Heating Investment Plan


